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Jared S. Chicoine i I 1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
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Website:

www.energy.nh.gov

July 10,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
(Vendor #177198), to supplement the Agency's Building Weatherization Program by increasing the
price limitation by $80,000 from $613,079 to $693,079 using additional Low-Income Home Energy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families and by extending the completion date from September 30,
2024 to December 31, 2024, effective upon Govemor and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by Govemor and Executive Council on December 21,2022, Item #59, and
amended on September 20, 2023, Item #93. 100% Federal Funds

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energv. Fuel Assistance FY2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $80,000

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies (CAA) preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization
program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the
impact of energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

July 10, 2024
Page 2 of2

households with children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will
supplement WAP work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency to effectively and efficiently increase the number of homes
receiving heating system improvements and/or weatherization services in the program year which
begins upon G&C approval. The Department estimates that approximately 10 additional homes will
be assisted in the CAA's service area as a result of the additional funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully sufcimitted,

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: BUILDING WEAtHERlZATION PROGRAM (BWP) CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as ihe
"State**) and Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc., 40 Pine Street, PO Box 5040, Manchester,
Hillsborough Coimty, NH 03108 (hereinafter the "Contractor")-

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agrecment'% as approved by
Governor and Council on December 21,2022, Item #59, and amended on September 20, 2023,
Item #93, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions
specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor haye agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects. . '

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement.is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of September 30,2024 and inserting in place
thereof the date of December 31, 2024.

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $613,079 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$693,079.

C) Exhibit C ~ Pavment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $613,079 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$693,079.

D) Ainend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$30,654 and inserting for administrative costs $34,654.

Award No. 2301NHLIEA; Award Date: 11/01/22 Contractor IriitialsA^r-
aIN: 93.568 Date: ir/f* /
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. «ge i of2



E) Amend Exhibit C» second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$582,425 and inserting for program costs $658,425.

2) Contfaiuancc of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the tenns and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of]

Date: L>I-LIZJ02>\
Chicome, Commissioner

Date UUM.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc

L

lame & Title of PersoQ^uthorized to Sign)
U^•caJU., ceo

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFHCE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/11/2024
Date: By:

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on 2024,

OFnCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

Award No. 230INHLIEA; Award Date: llA)l/22 Contractor Initials'

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. ~Page2«2



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965.
I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of States office have been received and is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006652089

%

8b

O

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal ofthe State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Orvillo Ksrr . hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

1. t am a duiy elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southem New Hampshire Services. Inc.
(Corporalion/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duiy called and
held on December 11 . 2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Giouthier. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Aliberti.
Financial Anaivst (may list more than one person )is duiy authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire
Services, inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the Slate of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and ail documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. t hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the Slate of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation ir)f^p0r^tr)icts with the State of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

I: (o A /ayDated:' ,
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {MM/DO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s)

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

name"^ Dianne Soto
fK E.. (603) 669-3218 (603) 645-4331
A^ESS: '^"Ch.certsQcrossagency.com

INSURER(S)APFOROmG COVERAGE NAKS

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

PO Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108-5040

INSURER B Midwest Employers Casualty Corp 23612

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

T

C

E

HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DICATED." NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVSW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPE OFINSURANCE POLICY NUMBER
Roucy eff

(MMTOOTYVYYI
PoLidV £xp

(MMA)0/YYYY) 1  UMTTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OENERAL UABILITV

E  1 Xj OCCUR

PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000,000

j CLAIMSAIAC UAMAUb 1U KEN 1 bO
PREMISES rEa occurraneal

J 100.000

MED EXP (Any ona oaraon) , 5.000

- PERSONAL t AOV INJURY , 1.000.000

GE

□

^AGGREGATEUMrTAPPUESPER:

POUCY JE^ 13 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE , 2,000.000

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG j 2.000.000
s

A

AU1

X

OMOetLE UAStUTY
1

PHPK2670952 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
rEa aceidartil S 1.000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY 1
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWMED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon) s

BODILY INJURY (Par accidarti) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE i
rPar acddanii 1 s

s

A

X UMBRELLA LUB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR
CLAIM$4AADE PHUB905859 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE , 5,000.000
AGGREGATE , 5.000,000

DEO 1 XI RETENTION $ 10.000 | s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UAStaTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE rm
0FFICERMEM8ER EXCLUDE)?
(Mandatory In MH) ' '
iryai.datcnbaundar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS MKw

N/A HCHS20240000534 (3a • NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

w PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER
E.L EACH ACCIDENT J 1.000.000
E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE , 1,000.000

E.L DISEASE • POUCY UMIT 5 1.000.000

A
Professional Liability

PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof Incident

Aggregate
$1,000,000

$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS! VEHICI.ES (ACORO 101, AOUKIonal Ramarli* ScliAduM, may ba attaehad H mora apaca b raquired)
Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

NH Department of Energy
21 South Fruit Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOROED REPRESEKTATfVB

ACORO 25 (2016/03) Th« ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

0 SEP05'23 m 242

T«L (603) 271*3670
OEPLTTYCOMMISSIONER ^-.-..
Chf1stophflr J. EBms, Jr. XgMagrSBSZ / ^ FAXNa271-162e?3

^  WetBte:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.eneiBy>ih^
21 S. FfviltSL.SuitelO

Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

September 20,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christc^her T. Sununu
and the HoiK)Table Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (VC #177198),
Manchester, NH, to supplement the Agency*s Weatherization Assistance Program by increasing die
price limitation by $399,960 fiom $213,119 to $613,079 using additional Low-Income Home Energy
Asastancc Program (UHEAP), fiom the U.S. Dqwrtment of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families and by extenchng the completion date fiom December 31,
2023 to September 30,2024, effective upon Governor and Executive Council qiproval. The original
contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on December 21,2022, Item #59.

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Deriaitment of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2024

02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $399,960

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies fxeferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for WAP, and thdr historic performance delivering the weatherization
program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program (WAP). The objective offoe program is to reduce energy consumption and foe
impact of energy costs in low-income housdrolds. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled,
households with children, and housdtolds with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will
supplement WAP work.

P«Selor2 OAC9/2Cli^



The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efGciently increase the number of
homes receiving heating system improvcmmts and/or full weatherization services in the program year
which begins upon G&C approval. The Department estimates that approximately 50 additional
homes will be assisted.in Ae CAA's service area as a result of the supplemental funding.

in the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

{imitted,
/

"N

Jared ChK^ine

Commissioner

P«ee2of2 OAC9«W023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT; BUILDING WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM (BWP) CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated August 14, 2023, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "State") and Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc., 40 Pine
Street, P.O. Box 5040, Manchester. Hillsborough County, NH 03108 (hereinafter referred to as
the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and C)ouncil on December 21,2022 (Item U59), the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State ofcertain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only aRer approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS. The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

*  • V '

1. Amendment an^d Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

I

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of December 31, 2023 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30, 2024.

B) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of S213,119 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$613,079.

C) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C. second paragraph bv
striking the current sum of $213,119 and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of$6l3,079.

Amend Exhibit C. second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$10,656 and inserting for administrative costs $30,654.

/SNHS Ameadmcni Coniracior Initials:

■Gnnis:'23diNHLlEA Dale:
CFDA: 93.568 'Pa<elor3



D)

E)

CONTRACT AMENDMENT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current sum of S202.463
and inserting for program costs $582,425.

Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Governor
and Council approval through September 30, 2024."

Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "upon Governor and Council
approval through September 30. 2024."

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Dep#tmcnt of Er

By:
Chicoine, Commissioner

SoiiA^em New Hampshire Services, Inc.

nnalee Lxizeau. Otief Executive Officer

State of New Hampshire

County of Hlfcboreuph

On this /7^^day of j v 2023, before me, Debra Stohrer , ihc
dWIIundersigned ofilcer, personally appeared oonMie* lw»u ., who acknowledged

himselfThcrselfto be the Chief Executive Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc..
a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for
the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and oHicial seal.

SNHS Amendmeni

••Crain$;"230rNHLIEA
CFDA: 93.5M

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires:

OEBRAD. STOHRER
Notay PuMo - ftow

My Comntfsdon Bitirae Ootoba 7,2SM3
ConiTftclor Iniiials;

Dale;

2of3



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

Approved as to form, execution and substance;

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Date:

Assistant Attorney Genera)

9/1/2023

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was appro^ bv the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on SEP 2 0 ?n?.1 2023.

OFFICE^5rT|J^&GRE1B9^Y OF STATE
By. \ ^

Title:

SECRETARY OF SIATE

SNHS Atnendmeni CooifBctor Im'titli: — »
Cftftii:230INHLIEA I5ile; "£271063
CFOA: 9J.S68 / pU Tofi



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certi/y that SOUTH ERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofti Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as for as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

CertiHcate Number: 0006209491

%

%

Ik

o

A %
%

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

,!. • Orvllle Kerr ^ . hereby certify that:
(N.an)e of the elected OfHcer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secrelary/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services Inc
(CorporaliorVLLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vole taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectors/shareholders, duty called and
held on October 25 2022 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholdere were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duty authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire Services to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

of New Hempshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modiftcations thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certiflcate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certiify
that It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy (he posilion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent (hat (here are any limits on the authority of any listed irnlividyal to^bind the corporation In contracts with
(he Slate of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly slated

Dated: ̂
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: SNHS Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



A^^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATS (UHOOrrYYV)

0301/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTTUCT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the c«rttf1cJte holder l« an ADDmONAL INSURED, (h« pollqr(lM) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED.provltlons or be endorsed.
.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, eui^ect to the tenns and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endoirsemenL A etatement on
this certificate does not confer rtohts to the certtflcste holder In lieu of such endoreementfs).

pROOucca

PIAI/Croes Insursnce

ItOO 0m Street

Oianne Solo

(603)680-3218 (603)645-1331

manch.censOcrosseoency.com

WSUXEatS) AFFOROMG COVCJUOC HAKf

Manchester nH 03t0t A: PNIedelphia IndenvSty Ins Co 18058

ersuMO

Southern NH Sarvlees Inc.

P.O. Box 5040

Manchesur NH 03108

MSUMR e: i^klweM Employers Cesuslty Corp 23612

MSUIVRC:

Msunno;

WSUttERE:

MSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: AD SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUOES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOO
INDiCATEO. NOTVyTTHSTANOING ANY REOUIREUENT, TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS'^D CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMtrS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYPf OF HSUMANCe POUCY MUMOER Loars

A

X COMSeaClAL OCNERAL UASOJTT

PHPK2535524 04/01/2023 04A)1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE , i.OOO.OOO

j ojuMUMce OCCUR
tUUUll: TO Hiii/TCO
PRCUSES fFi oenmneal , 100.000

SCO £XP (Am one OWMn) , 5.000

PERSON*!, a AOV INJURY , 1.000.000

IcEyLAGOAeOATtveaTAmigSFe*: i OEnERN. AOOREOATE , 2.000.000

FOUCV 1 1 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PROOUCTS • COflOPAOQ , 2.000,000

□ s

A

lAUTOHoeu Luaojrr

PHPK2535522 04/01/2023 0441/2024

cosetNEO SiNdti uurf
(Eatodemi t 1,000.000

X ANY AUTO

:kE0UI£0
rros
MOWNEO
rroso*«.Y

BOORY INJURY (Ptr s

ovmEO
AUTOS ONLY
MREO
AUTOS ONLY

SO
AU

aOOLY INJURY |P« KddWK] t

NC
AU

PROPERTY tHJi*iAE t

1  1 t

A

X uKaaeuAUAB

ExcesauAa

X OCCUR

CLAMSAMOe PHUSB57270 04/01/2023 ■ 04/01/2024
EACH OCCURRENCE ( 5.000.000

acgreoate 1 5.000.000
OCD 1 ^ RETEMTXJN S 16.000 | s

8

nOaXEAS COHFCNIATIOM
ANOCMFLOYtaa-UABajrv

AMY FnOFRttTO#MAUm«a«ttCUTfVE 1 1
OFFCER/UEheca EXaUOCD? 1
(iMndMnr M NH) '

O^SC^^O^OPEAA-nONS M««-

N/A HCHS20230000534 (3e.)NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

XlSam. 1
ei..eACMAcaoEMr 1 1.000.000
EJ.. DISEASE' EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000.000
EX. DISEASE • POUCY U««T , 1D00.000

A
Professional Lisbiilty

PHPK2535524 04A)1/2023 0441/2024

LImJl

Apgrepste

S1.000.000

$ 2.000.000

DeKRVnONOFOFCnAnOMS/LOCAnOMSrvoaCLei tACO<U)i«i.Addfdwi«lR*iwii*»tiwduie.e«Kb«*»e#iedif mwsieKsb #•»*•<)

Risfer to peOcy lor exdusionery endorsements and spedai provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Oeparonent of Eneifiy

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBE POLICIES 8£ CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Fruit Street
AUTHORiaEO REPRESEMTATTVE

Concord
1

NH 03301

C1966-2015 ACORD CORPORATTON. All nghts reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name end logo ere regietered marlia of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

C€PUTYOOI«iOSStONER '

D£C07'22«iH!i5RCHe/ta«M.R«,NH ̂COWiflSSIONER ,
1,1.-.«f» fj I I ^ 1*0O&73&29o4
JtfVO b. wnKOffiQ I I I

T«l (803) 271^70

'  FAXNo.27M528

DEPARTMENT OF ENEROY
21S.FrullSl.Sute10

Conconl.N.H. 03301-2429

VMato:

www.«neiyy/th.goii

December 21,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Conooid, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire D^)artmcnt of Energy (NH Energy) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (VC #177198), Manchester, NH, in the amount
of $213,119 to supplcmmt the Agency's Weaihcrization Assistance Program (WAP), effective upon
Oovcmor and Executive Council approval through December 31,2023. 100% Federal Funds.
(LIHEAP-USDHHS)

Funding is atvailablc in the following account, contingeni upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the opeiating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance FY2TO
02-52-52-520010-3354000(W)74-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $213,119

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant
guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Wcathexization
Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients
eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the wcatherization program.

NH Energy is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consuiqjtion and the impact of
cnogy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, dis^lcd, households whh
children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract wnll supplement WAP
work.

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) fimding in this contract
wiU allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to efftctivtly and efficiently increase the number of

P^IofJ G&CIMI/20a



homes receiving heating system improvements and/or full weatherization services ih the program year
which begins upon G&C approval. NH Energy estimates that approximately 31 additional homes will
be assisted in the CAA's service area a result ofthe supplemental funding. . :n.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available^ General Funds wilt not be requested to support this'
contract.

ly itted,

\

Vared Chicoine

Commi^icner
New Hampshire Department of Energy

Pv2of2 GAC12/21/2022



NH Energy UE) tfTNVEUXNKAFS?

FORM NUMBER P.37(veriion 12/11/2019)

Ncxice: ThU Agreement And ili of its AttAchmcnU shsll become public upon submission to Covemof end
Executive Council for ipprovil. Any informAiion ihit it privsie. conridemial or propriflAry muit
be clcArly idetttiried to (he Agency And Agreed to tn writing prtor to signing the conir»c(.

AGREEMENT
The Suie of New Hxmpthirc end the Cenirxeior hereby mutuaUy Agree as followr

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDCNTIFICATION.

1.1 StAte Agency Nime
New Htmpshire Oep&rtment of Energy

1.2 Stale Agency Address
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10

Concord. NH 03301

1.} CofttrsciorNtme

Southern New Hampshire Servicn. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

40 Pine Street, Mancbesicr, NH 03103

1.5 ConUACtor Phone

Number

(603)668-8010

1.6 Account Number

02-52-S2-520CI0-33S4OOCO-

074-500587 52BWP23

1.7 Completion Date
December 31.2023

1.8 Price Limitation

S2I3.H9

1.9 ContrACtingOnkerforStAtc Agency
Kirk Stone, Weaiheriuiton Progrvn Maniger

1.10 Suie Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-3670.

t. II VContractor Signature 1.12 Ntine and Tiik of Contractor Sigrutory
Dotuulee Lotttu, Chief Executive Officer

•

"  y°"'/lhlca

1.14 Name and Title of State AgeiKy Signatory
iircd Chicoine, Commissiorter
New Himpshiie Department of Energy

1.1 by the N.H. Department of Adminislrtlion, Division of Pertortnel ({f applictibtt} .

1/ By. Director, On:

1,16 Approval by the, AHomey Getiml (Fofm» Subiunce ar^ Eiecut ion) 0/oppff^obft)

By ^ 12/6/2022

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council f/opp/ZcoVr.)

c:^ DEC 2 1 imG&C Item nUja^er \ Meeting D»ie:

SECRETARY OF STATE

Page 1 of4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampahire, acting thnugh the'agency identified in block \.X
C'SiBle"), engages cohlrsctor identified in blo^ 1.3
("Coatraciof*) to paform. end ̂ e Comiactor shall pcrfonn, the
w^rk or sale of goods', or both, identified end morc particularly
doeribed In tte attached EXHIBIT 6 m^IcH is incorporated
herein by rtferettce ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DAT&COMPLEJipN OF SERVICES. .
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary^ and nbject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all .obligations.of the parties hereunder, shall
become efTeciiye on the da.te ihe Govtmor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unleaa no tuch approval la roquired, in which case the' Agreement
shall become cfTcciive on the dale the Agreement is signed by
the State AgcfKy as shown iii block 1.13 fEffeettye Date").
3.2 If {he Contractor cornm]^es (he Services prior to (he
EHective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
(Ke Effeciive Dale shall.W performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in (.he event tlui this Agreement d^ not becorne
effective,, the State shall have no liability to tlx Contractor,,
including without limiutlon, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any. costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by .the Completion Date
speciHed in block 1.7.

4. CONDtTIQNAt NATURE OP AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of (he Slate- hereunder, including,
without limitation, the rantinuance of-pByroents hereunder, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued apprbpriaiion of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action (hat reducei, eliminates or bihervrise roodiftes the
appropriation or availabiliiy of funding for this Agreement and
(1m Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In ho event ihall the State be liable.for any payments
hereunder in excess of such'available appfopnaiedfiinds. In the
event of a ledvction or termination of appropriated funds, (he
State ahall bave'the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate (be Services under ihis.Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of luch reduction or tenninatlon.
The iS(a{e thai! not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account ideniined in block l.d in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are idertiifted arid more particularly described ih EXHIBfr C
which is incorporated herein.by.reference.
3.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only end the complete feimbv.rsemcni to the Contractor for all
expend, of whate^r nantre irKurred by the Con.tractor in the
jperformar^ hereof, and ahall be the only .and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for.i^ Service The'Siate.thall
have no liability to the.Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the rtght to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor undv (his Agreement (hose
liquidated amounts required, or permitted by NJi. R§A 60:7
through RS A 80'.7< or any otlxr provision of law.
3.4 Notwithstanding any provision in'this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected .c.ircumitancp, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation.set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WltH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
oppORTwrrv.

6.1 In'connection with the performance of-(he Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applic^te (tanues, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, coumy or municipal
authdrittes which .impose any t^ligaiiori o.r .duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity- lasvs. In addition, if this Agrcemeht is
fun^ in any part by monies of the United States, (he Contractor
shall comply wiih all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
end statutes, and with any'njics. regulations artd guidelines as the
State pr the United Stales issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During (he term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate, against employtes or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will (ake afTinnaUvt action to
prevent such discrimination.'
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the Slate or United States
. access to any of ihe Contractor's books, records' and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compiiance with alt rula, regulations
end orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor ahall at its own exper^ provide all penonnel
neee^ry to perform the Services, The ̂ntrector wananls that
all personnel engaged in the Services ihall- be quaiined to
perform (he Services, and ahall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in Writing,, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of aix (6) months after (he
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Coritractof shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcdntrpctor or .ptber pefson, Grm' or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any peraon who is a Stf{e employee
or ofTiciat. who i.s materially involved ip the procurement,
administration or - performance of this Agreement. This,
provision shall survive termination o.fthis AgrMment.
7.3 The Contracting OB'icer ipeciried in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's r^rcsentative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the tnierpretation of (his Agreement, the
Contracting OfTiccr's decision shall be final'for (he Stale! '

Page 2 of4
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6. EVEffT OF DEFAUtT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or,more of (he foitowins ecu or omissions of the
CootFici'or thftll consiitute «n event of default hereunder C'Eveni
of Defeuir'):
6.1.1 fiilure. to perform the Services utisfftctorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercundcn amVor
8.1.3 failure to perform any otha covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon occurrence of any Event of Ekfaiilt, (he State may
take any one. or more, or ill, of the following actions':
8.2.1 give the .Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauli and requiring it to be remedi^ within. In the absence of
a greater or les^ specification of tinw. thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; if (he Event of Default ts not tidtely cured,
terminate this Agreeinent. effcciive two (2) days after giving the
Contrectd) notice of termination; •
8.2.2 give the Contractor a t^itlen notice specifying the Event of
Default and lu^pdtdihg all payn^ts to be made under this
Agrnmnt and. Ordering that .the portion of ibe contract price
which tyould otherwise ac<^ (o the Contractor during the
period £roTn4hc. date of fuch r^iice until such tirne as the Siisle
detennines that the Contractor, has cured the Event of Default
shall never be. paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 give the Contractor a whiten hbtice speci^ng the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligalions (he Sisie may '
owe to (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Defoult; an^of
8.2.4 give the Contractor a whiten notice specifying (he Event of
Default, treat (he Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at taw or in equity, or
both
8.3. No failure by.the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Everit of Defoult shall be deemed a vbrttveV of id rights with
regard to thai. E^nt of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Deftuli. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he hghi of the State to enforce each end
ell of the provisiorts hereof upon any further or other Event of

• Default on (he part of the Contractor.

9. termination.
9.1'Noiwiihstsiding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
In part; by thirty (30) days written notice to (he (^(Urs(4or that
the Slate it exercising id option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of en early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the cflrrrplction of (he Services, the
Contractor sKallj at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting O.fTicer, not later thsh filleen (IS) days aner the due
of lerminallon, a' report (Termination Report") describing in
detail airScrviccs p^orrmd, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of (erm'inatioil. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of c^ics of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those df any Final lUport described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. la addiiido, at (he Stale's disc^ion, the Contiacior
shall, within 1S days o.f nojice of early terntination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition. Plan for cervices under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENtlAtrrV/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word |^^"thsll mean all
infoimation and things develqkd or obtaii^.qilWng the
performance of, or acquire or developed by reason of, this
Agreemehi, including, but not limited to. all studi^ reports,
files, formulae, lurveyi, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproducltons, drawtngAranalyscA graphic,
representstlora, computer programs, computer pnn)ouls, notes,
(cttcra, me.ntoranda, papers, and.documents, all 'whether
finished or unfinished.

(0.2 Alt data and any property whkh haa been received from
the State or purthased with Rmds provided for that puipobe
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be recuroed to the State upon demand or upots-itinmindlion
of this Agreement for any re^on.
10.3 Confideniialiiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior writien approval of ilw State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

perfomtsnce of this Agreement the Coni/acior is in all respects
en independent conireetor. and Is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the ^ntracior nor any of its

'  officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefita, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMBNT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest In this Agreement without the prior written notice,,which
shall be provided to the State at least .riflecn (IS) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a .Change of. Control shall constitute
assignment. Xhangc of .Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a (ransociion or series of related transactions in
-which a third party, together with Its affilisies, becomes the
direct of indirect owner of f'lfly percent (5p*A) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Cohtractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of (he assets of the Ccrilractor.

12.2 None of (he Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
The Slate b entitled to copin of all subconifacts and assignm^i
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to wiiich it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless'oth^iseexeotpicdbylaw,
(he Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, ila
offic'en and employees, from and against any and all claims,,
liabilities and costs Cor any personal injury or property datugea,

.  patent or copyright-infringement, or'other claims assert^ ̂ inst
the State, its officers or employees, which qrise out of (or which
may be claimed to anse ovi oO the ac|s or omi'tsibn of the

v.
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Conutc(or» or tubcontrocrors, including but not limiied to the
negltgenc«, recUeu or Intentionsl conduct. The State ihell not
be lUbte for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paregraph p. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained sittll be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of ihe Siate; which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Sia'ie. ITtis covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the.
termination of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 the Contractor shall, at its-sole espense, obtain and
continuously' maintain in force, and ahalt require any
subccnMlor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:.
14.1'.! commerciargeneral liability insurance against all claims
of bodily ii\jury, death .or propeny damage, in amounts of not
kss Chan $I,006,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1:2 special cause of loss coverage form'covering all propeny
subject (0 wbpsragraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not leu than
80H pf the w^Ie rjrplaeenrient value of the property.
14.2 The polic.iek described in subparagrap.h 14.1 herein shall be
on policy fonra ard cndorKmenis ipproved for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by the N.H. D^artmeni of Insurance, and
issded by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
idqitifi.ed in block 1.9.'or his o^ her successor, a cenificatefs) of
insurenpe fpr ^11. insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor sKall also furnish to the Contracting OrTicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiftcatefs) of insurance
for all.renewalfs) of insurance requlred under this Agreement no
later than ten. (10) days prior to (he expiration date of each
insurance policy: The certiflcaieis) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are ineorporated herein by
reference.

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION. ^
IS.l By signing this agreement, (he Contractor agrees, cenifies
and wamnts that the Contiacior is in compliance with or exempt

•  from, the rcquiicments of N.H. RSA chapter 281'A ("Worktn'
Compe/imrion "j.

■  I S.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. dSA chspter 281>A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any' tubcontrector or assignee to secure end maintain,
payment of Worters* Compensation in connection with
ictiviiiei which (he person proposes to imdertske pursuant (o this'
AgreemnL The Contractor shall furnish ihe.Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner de^ribed in N.H. RSA chapter
261>A and any applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be
attached, and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be ■ resporulblc for payntenl of any Workers'
Compensation prtfmiums or for any other, claim or benefit for.
Contrseior, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

- which might arise urxjer applicable Stale .of New Hampshire
Workers' Cdmpensaitoh lawi in conneclioo with the
performance-qfthe Scnriees under this Agreemmt.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of malling.by ̂ Ified mail, postage prepaid, tn-a United States
Post Office eddrosed lo (he parties, at'(he additsses gi.vtn in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

'T *

•17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in wriiing sighed .by-the
parties hereto and only aAer approval pf such amendment,
waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Executive Council df
(he Sute ofNcw Hampshire unless no sueh.aipproval is r^uired
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is biiiding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties artd their .respective nccesson
and assigns. The word.ing used In this Agreement la the word.ing'
chosen by (be parties to «press their mumai intent, artd no (tile
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any parly.
Any Bctioiu arising put pf this Agreement, shall be brought arid
tnairu^ined in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive junsdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TC.RMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms pf'lhis P-37 form (as.ntodified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or allschments and amendment thereof, the terms of (he
P-37 (as modified In EXHIBIT A) shall coniroi.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parlies hereto do not Intend to
berwfit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any uch benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, artd (he words contained (herein
shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpreiaiioh, construction or meaning of the provisions of (his
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISION^ Addilioiul or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXKIBIT.A are tncorporaied
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofihe provisions of this
Agreement ere held by a court of competent jurisdictiomto be
contrary to any slate or. federal law, the refining provisions of
this Agreement will remairi in full force arid effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, \^ich may be
executed in t number of counterparts, each o.f which shall be
deemed sn ori^nsl, constitutes the entire agrietment and
understanding beiween the parties, and supersede all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof. •
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 3 CFR 200, es amended. <Unironn Adminislralive Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirementt for Federal Awaids). IQ CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Wcsthcrization Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherizaiion Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM). and NHWAP Field Guide are alt considered pan of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this eoniraci.
The New Hampshire Department of Ertcrgy (NH Enagy) reserves the right to use any legal remedy
at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension
of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or lubcontiaciors
from present or future contracts, arid such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the
New Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
WcalherUation Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpait F • Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditiira by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least
every four yean.

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
-  regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters

written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to (he KH Energy within
one month of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each
finding or questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

*•9.3 All negotiated contracts (except those of S5.000 or less) avmrdcd by the New Hampshire
Department of Energy to the Contractor shall allow the New Hampshire Department of Energy, (he
US Department of Energy, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller Gmeral of the Uiuied States,
or any duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papen, and records of the
Subgrantbe or (heir subcontractors, which ere directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpis, and transcriptions."

4. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals.

5. program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the NH Energy end the
Contractor for 3 (three) years ̂ m the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for
awards that ere renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of (he quarterly or
annual financial report, at stated in 2 CFR 200.334 - Retention Requirenumti for Records.

Exhibit A

Initials Date

Award ffO-2301NHUEA ^,
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6. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required rcpona and rcimburtcmcnl rcquesii shall be
submitted to the Stale within forty-five (dS) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

'7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the genera! provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
thai no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any other law of the United States.' except if authorized under that law

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following arc attached and signed: Cenification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Cenificaticn Regarding Lobbying: Ccrt»fi«iton
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other ResponsibilityMatten; Certification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco
Smoke; Assuranccof'CompUanceNondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliarrcc.

"27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgranis in excess of $2.000.W for
conitniclton 01 repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copcland "Ami-Kickback' Act
,(l 8 use 874) as supplemented in Dc^rtment of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each coiitractor, subcontract or subgrantcc shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of thccompensationlo which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the New Hampshire Department of Energy."

"28. PROCUREMENT. Subgramce shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Su^n Dr Post
Fcdcral.Award Rcquirwncnls - Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurrment (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and properly management <2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards.)"

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Soulhcm New Hampshire Services, Inc.. hercinancr "the Conlraclor,** agrees to utiliie the Building
Weathcrization Program (BWP) funds, which arc ihc subject of this contract and which have tlwir ori^n
in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). to provide eligible clients with
weathcrization services, including healing sysiem repair and replacement services, which meet the
it^uiremenU end standaids for LIHEAP weathcrlMtion work as modified and.approved in the 1^23
New Hampshire UHEAP State Plan. In addition, all work wmpletcd using BWP funds will be in
accordance with the fiscal requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and will be
guided and implemented at directed by the New-Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) in this .
conlract and, from'time to time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other.ccmmunlcalions. The Contractor
agrees to revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate insimctlons from NH Energy.

Contractor agrees to incorporate changes to the NH Building Weathcrization Program as prescribed by
NH Energy to irhprovc program delivery. Conlraclor further agrees to perform all weathcrization
services in a manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs
for low income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

2. This BWP contract period, to be known as "BWP23;" will commence upon approval of this contract by
the Oovemor and Eaecutivc Council, and will have a completion dote of December 31,2023, also
subjecttothcapprovaloftheOovemorandExeculiveCouncil. " • •

3. BWP hinds, which are the subject of this contract, shall rwi be.expended forhcalihand safety purposes.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Wcatherizalion Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved - in other words, where there is no money for the installation of health
and safely measures - then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (sec the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project it nol
brought down to below I.

4. No portion of the BWP funding In this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(TATA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on TATA activities. 'Appropiraic back-up and justification for the use of those funds will be
required by NH Energy prior to reimbursement.

5. During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete weathcrization icrvices on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor's PY23 BWP allocation by S6.500. NH Energy
understands that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number due to the
unpredlctebiliiy of healing system costs, etc., but NH Energy «pccts to ice monlhly BWP payment •
requests from the Contractor in order to monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be
done to the standards and dtpcciations presented in LIHEAP weathcrization guidance, this contract, and
theNH WAP Pollclti and Proctdures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number of dwelling units and the amount of fiinds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. NH Energy reserves the right to review progress under this contract

EzKibit B
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at any tinw and may utilize infonnalion from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds
to be expended.

b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by December 31.
2023.

6. EfTeciive April 1, 2015, all work performed under the federal Weatherizalion Assistence Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specincations defined in the US Department of
Energy'sQualiiy Work Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
speciftcations end requirements as WAP work. Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weaiherization outcomes similar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when W AP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this docummt
(Exhibit B).

7. Gicnt eligibility for BWP'funded wejBihcrizatipn work should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherizalion work; client income is to be no greater than 60% of the slate median income
(SMI).

i  • . V

8. BWP money may be "leveraged" (used in combination) with any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, and if the Subgrantee wishes to count
that project as a WAP/DOE completion, then the projoci must have at least one energy conservation
measure that meets the SIR test, that measure (or those measures) must be paid for with WAP dollars,
and the final inspection of the whole job must be done by a current 6PI ceriified Quality Control
Inspector (^1) and declared "WAP complete, ready for reimbursement."

9. BWP money may be used for either full dwelling weatherizalion upgrades or for heating system
impro^ments alone. Contitctor is obligated under this coniraci to expend at least of the
contracted BWP amount on heating syitem repairs and/or replacements. .

a.. The PY23 BWP package of fomu (see item 12b, below) for reporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make clear whenever BWP money was used:

i. for restoration of heating servica (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
equipment).

ii. for prevention of heating system service toss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or

iii. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
to report when heating system work paid for with BWP fUnds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

10. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project without en approved
waiver is S12,000. If the BWP budget for any one project must exceed that amount, a waiver must be
received from NH Energy. NH Energy will review all waiver requests promptly and will provide
approval when possible. However, applying the expenditure guidelines in the FY23 NH LIHEAP State
Plaiv NH Energy will not approve total BWP expenditures on any one dwelling weaiherization project
that exceed SI S,000. This total is cumulative, summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to
that dwelling (including amounts from program years in which the name of the UHEAP>funded
weaiherization program may have been different).

11. BWP production includes:

Award 0O-23O1NHUEA
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t. Weathcriution upgrtdes which ere commensurete with e woric plen developed from e thorough
dwelling energy audit and e TREAT model prepared by a qualiPied (BPl-certified) Building
Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the work plan (the
energy conservation measures - ECMs - to be installed) using cither the "benefit/cost ratio"
(B/C) methodology as defined by the ulilities' Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
"savings to invatmcnt ratio" (SIR) methodology as defined by the US IXDE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used to justify the installation of any ECMs which arc to be paid,.
for with WAP funds.

b. Final inspections which determine:
i. whether the project's work plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the

methodology - 6/C or SIR - used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre^weatherization condition of the building, etc.

' ii. whether that appropriate work plan was fully and effectively implemented in the
dwelling, providing the client with a compr^eruivc energy-saving weatheriaation

• outcome, or, in the case of heating system only imprbvcrncnls, providing the client with
a safe arul efficient and fully operational home heating system.

c. In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling (and there
may be other funding sources as well), that project's ECMs which are to be paid for using BWP
and/or WA? funds must be completed using the WAP roles and standards, including the
installation of only those measures which individually achieve an SIR equal to or greater than I,
the use of a certified QuiWxy Control Inspector to perform the final inspection, etc.

d. In projects where no WAP money is involved, the final BWP Inspection may be performed by a .
person holding a wrrenl BPI edification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Control Inspector.

c. Because BW? money is not WAP money, BWP money may be used in wcathOTzalion upgrades
to dwellings which have received W AP-fimdcd or BWP.fiindcd upgrades more recently than
the I S-year rolling time period which governs WAP re-weathcrizalion by proenling a waiver
request to NH Energy. However:

i. re>weaihenzation should be done iparingly,.remerhbering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weaiherization services at all;

ii. care should be taken, as always, to avoid even the appearance of favoritism;
iii. all BWP.fundcd second visits to previously weaihcrized dwellings, whether that

weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt ofan approved waiver from NH Energy.

12. The tracking of BWP jobs wiil includc:
a. Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will

utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc;, even if no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed
in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

b. The use of a separate BWP reimbursement request package/spreadsheet package supplied by
NH Energy. All jc^s with any BWP money invest^ must be submitted for reimbursement on

Exhibit B
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ihe BWP set of forms. If b psiiicwUr job also irKludcs ihe use of ony WAP money, then thai job
will have to be submitted for WAP reimbunement as wcU. using the WAP reimbursement
request forms. Therefore, if a single wcatherization job uses funds from two different
weatheriiaiion funding sources managed by NH Energy, that job must be submitted to NH
Energy twice in order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each.source.

13. This agreement consists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, arvd Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E. F. 0, H, I. and J. All exhibits arc incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Exhibit B
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OP ENERGY

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the salislfictory performsnce of the lervices set forth In Exhibit B, the Sltte agrees to
pay the Oootraclor. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. up to the total sum.of:

$213,119 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
$10,656 is the maximum to be spent on 6WP related administrative cosU,
$202,463 (the balance) to be spent on weatheriialion aclivitio (Program Activity).

Drawdowru from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to NH Ener^. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedurea established by the State and 2 CFR 2{X).365(b) on an advance'
basis; limited to nunlmum amounts needed; and be timed to be In accordance with the actual, immediate
cash rcquirtmtnls of the Contractor In carrying out the purpose of the program. The Contractor must
make timely payments to (sub)coniractors in accordance with the contract provisions. Contractor shall
submit a payment request to NH Energy for each month of the contract period using the forms to be
provided by NH Energy for that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at NH
Energy no letcrlhan the 15*^ day ofcach month or the first business day following the IS^day.

Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administralivcftindsmaybepro-raiedbyNHEnergyifproductionunitcompletlonsdonol
meet expected production goals.

NH Energy will also be allowed, ias a function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
emounis as necessary to ensure the efficient and elective opmtion of the contract as long as these
modified expenditures do not exceed the total "Conlnctcd Amount" as specified above.

All obligations of the State, itwiuding the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibit C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contntcior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Pfovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 51 SI-SI 60 of (he Dnig*Frec Workplace Act of) 988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 ctseq.),and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.l2of
the General Provisions execute (he following Cehificaiion:

CERTinCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES '
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Actof l988(Pub. L. 100-690, Title.V, Subtitle D; 4! U.S.C.701 etseq.). The January 31. 1989, regulations
were amend^ and published as Pan 11 ofthe May 25, 1990. Federal Register foagei 21681-2169.1), and require
certification by grantees (artd by inference, sub-grantees and sub-conlraclcrs), prior to award, thai they will
maintain a drug-free wor^lace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides (hat a grantee (and by inference,
lub-grantees and tub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal-fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the ageiKy
awards the grant. False certification or violation of (he certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form

.  should send it to:
Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Fjiergy

21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
-dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken agairtsi employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing dfug-frce awareness program to infonn employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the worl^lace;
(2) The grantee's policy of rhaintainlng a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance.programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employ^ for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the ̂ nt be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

^  r . .

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
•  employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abidtby.lhe terms ofthe statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
Exhibits D thru H
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CERTinCATION RECARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

'  US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(c) Notifying the Agency in writing, within ten cetcndar dayi aftCT receiving notice under
.. wbparBgraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of tuch conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofRccr on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has desigruited a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identincation numberfs) of each affected grant:

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 10 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2),-with respect to any employee who Is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
.  termination.consistent wiihthereouirtmcnlioflhcRctobllitation Actof 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring'such employee lo participate saiisfactbrily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith cffOTt to continue to rrulntain a drug'free wo'rkplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c), (d), (e), and (0-

(B) The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the 5ite(s) for the pcrfonnahce of work done jn
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

40 Pine Street

Manchester. NH 03103
V,

Check n if there arc workplaces on file that are not identified here.'

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. upon Governor and ̂ ecutive Council
approval through December 3), 2023

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certificaiion

Donnalee Lozeau, Chief Executive Officer

Name aod Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

V
JmmiLjmM

C6ii\iict6fK

1*.

liblmi'
'  ' Daleihtatiye Signature
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT E ^

The Contractor identiried in Section 1.3 of iSc General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Uw .101-121. Govtmment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying.end 31
U.SC. 1352. and fimhcf agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following CeTtification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (Irtdicale opplicablc program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low'loeome Home Eoergy Asslstaocc Program
HRRP Program
BWP Program

ConlrBct Period;- upon Governor and Executive Courtcil approval through December 31.2023
The undersigned certifics..to the best of his or h» knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
pmon for influencing or eiiempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Conj^ess in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, an^ndmcnt. or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific mcniion sub-granlecor sub
contractor).

(2) If any hinds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this •
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agrtemeni (end by specific mcniion sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undertigned.shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Fonn to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require' that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants.'and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. .

Thii certificaUon Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S.Code. Any person who fails lo file the required certification shailbc
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

V.
Donnalec Loaeau, Chief Executive Officer

Representativeffignature Contractor's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
Contractor Name ' Era'®
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor ideniined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive OfTice of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding D^arntcnl, Suspension,
and Other Rdsponsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificaiion:

CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

lasfructibns for Ctriifioatlon

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (coniraci), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will riot necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit en explanation
of why it cannot provide the ceftification. The certiftcation or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH DcpaitmcrU of Energy (NH Energy) determination whether to enter Into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to fumbh a certincation or an explanation shall
disqualify such person f^m participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
Energy determined to enter into this transaction. Ifli is later detennined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certincation. in addition to other remedies available t.o'the
Federal Govemmeni, may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH Energy to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at anytime the prospective primary participant learns that its certiftcation
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered iranisaction,"-
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6). The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
coveted transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless eulhorieed by NH Energy.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (hat it will include the clause
titled "Certificaiion Regarding.Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower tier
Covered Trensadtions." provided by NH Energy, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participani in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows (hat the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method artd
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Norvprocurcment List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
courseof business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorited utkIct paragraph 6 of these instmctlons, if a participant in a covered
transaction Igiowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal govemmeni, NH Energy may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Cenipcotion Regarding iHbarment, Suspension, and Other
Respcnsibiiify Matters • Primary Covered Transaetions

(11) The prospective primary p#iticip#ni certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

'  (a) are not presently d^arred, suspended, proposed for debBrmeni, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
exclud^ from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

.  (b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing.a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or D contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust statutes or
commission of embenlcment. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false siaiements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a goverwncntal entity
-  (Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)

of this ccrtificalion; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
iransactiofu (Federal. State or local) lerminaied for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certijlcation Regarding Debamient, Suspension, fnellglbillty and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lotver Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
AS CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for ddunneni. declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) whcfc-ihe prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debsrment, Suspcrtsion, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Cove^ Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tieroivered irensactipf

Dorwalcc Lorcau, Chief Executive Officer

ctor Reprcs^tat^e Signature Contractor's RcpresentativeTitle

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. /
Contractor Name '
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

.  CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractoridentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisionj agrccj by lignaturc of the Contractor*!
representative as identified in Sections 1. 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificaiion:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to maXe reasonable effoits to
comply with ell applicable provisions of the Americans with'Disabiliiics Act of 1990. ■

)ntnctor Represcntatiii^ignature

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

Donnalee Loieau, Chief Executive Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

JaXL
Contractor Name

Award 0G<23OtNHUEA

CFDA a9).S6S

laitUls

Exhibits D thru H



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARtMENT OF ENERGY

standard EXHIBIT H /

CERTlFICAtlON
Public Uw 103-227, PaM C

environmental TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1094, requires
that smolung not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely own^ or leased or contmcled for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health* ̂ y care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services ere funded by Federal programs either directly or through Slate or
local govenunenti, by Federal grant, contraei. loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded aolcly by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

'Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
S1.000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing ar>d submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrbes that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantecs shall certify accordingly.

Representative lure

Donnalee Lozeau. Chief Executive Officer

Contractor's Representative Title

Soulhem New HampsSire Services. Inc.-
rVinlmrtftf Nlim^ ^8tCContTBCtor Name

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

.  i
' ; U5.DEPARTMEW OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRJMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS '

f.

OMD Burdco OiKiosureStAtemcot

Public reporting burden for (his collection of tnfprnution is estimated to average 15 minutes pet response,
irwluding the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing dace sources, gathering and maintaining the data
ne^ed. end completing end reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regerding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burdert, to
Office of Information Resources Martagemenl Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - OTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Depanment of Energy, .1000 independence Avenue.
S.W., Washington, DC 2058S; and 1o the OfTice of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction
Project {1910-0400); Washinglon, DC 20503.

Southern New Hampshire Services, liu. (HereinaRer called the" Applictm") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the Federal Energy Administration
Act of 1974 (Pub. L 9^775). S.ection 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972; as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318. Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-
135), Title yill of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L 95-91), the Energy Conservalion and Production Act of 1976. as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulatii3ns, Pan 1040. b accordance with the above laws and regulations issued -
pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin, sex. age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
olhehvise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which (he Applicant receives Federal
assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability aod Period of Obligartoo
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Dcpanmeni of Energy, (his assurance •
obligates the Applicant for (he period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates (he transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance it extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for (he period during which it mains ownership or possession of (he property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates (he Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by (he Department of Eiwr^.

Employment Practttca
Where a primary objKiive of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where (He Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, cotor, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such en^loymeni practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, fates of piy;
training and pafllcipBtion in upward mc^ility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subredplcot Aisaraoee

Exhibit I
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The Applicant thall require sny individual orgenieetion, or oiher entity with whom it subcontractt, subgrents» or
fubteases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, properly, or structure to comply
with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient slUll be requiried to sign a written assurance
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

I

Data CoUecUoo and Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result ofthe Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manna in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for detenruning whether any pasons are or will be denied such services.on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by-race, color, ruuional origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data rtgaiding covered entploymem irrcludlnguteor planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries ofthe program where necessary to permit efrcctive participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
undentand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whetha the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (S) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex. age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the •
program; end (6) ony 'additional written data determln^ by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws ciied in the firsi paragraph of (his assurance.

The Applicant agrtes'to submit requested data lo the Department of Energy regarding programs end activities
developed by the Applicant from (he use of Federal assistance funds extended by (he Dq>8riment of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or otha structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and otha sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal businas houn on request of lan offica or employee of the
Department of Enagy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
providedi by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any end ell Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracU), property, discounts or otha Federal assistance extended afia the
date hereof, to the Applicants by the Depanmeni of Energy, including installment payments on ecccunl afia
such data of applicatiori for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees (hat such Federal assistance will becxtendadtn reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This auuiance is binding on the AppHcsnl, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
'peraon(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of (he
Applicant. ■

Appllcabt CertlflcaUoo

The Applicant ceitlfies that it has complied, or (hat. within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requlrementsof 10C.F.R,^$ 1040.3 (a copy will be fumished to the Applicant upon written
request to.DOE). ;

.Donnalee Lozeau, CEO Sigrmure Date

Southern New Hampshire Services, Iric.'
40 Pine Street

' Manchesia, NH 03103

iililUi'i'
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«  NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

!  STANDARD EXHIBIT J
I

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
: AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabiliiy and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individual Federal grants equal toor than S25.000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010.
to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. If the inilial'award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a loial-award
equal lb or over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requircmcnis, as of the date of the
award.

In aecordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting 5tibo\^'Orti and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire D^rtmcnt of En^y must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of perforniance
9) Unique id^tifierofthe entity(UEI ff)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. M.orcthan80%ofarutuBl gross revenues arc from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which.
the award or award amendment is made.

i

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding AccouirtabiUty and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sitbo'Mtrd and £xecu/i've Compensation Information), and further
agrees to hfK the Contractor's representative, as idcniified in Sections l.ll and 1.12 of the General
Provisions cxecute the following Certification:

The below named'conlraclor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy aftd to comply with alt applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Aceoun^bilily and Transpaipncy Act.

Donna lee Lozeau, Chief Executive Officer

(Contrf^wRfprr^tfit'v^ ; (Authorized Contractor Representative Name A Title)

Southcin New Hajn^shire Services. Inc. ^
(Contractor Name)

Exhibit i
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••• 't* NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

'  STANDARD EXHIBIT J
• I

FORM K
I

As the Contractor iiientifiod in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions. I certify thai the responses (o the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity Ideniifier (UEl) number for your eniity ir HLNJBCYTXiVM3 ^

2. In ̂ ur business or organization's prcceding'con^leted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (l) 80 pcrceru or more of your annual gross revenue in UiS. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants,'and/or cooperative agreements: orwJ (2) S25.000.000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranli. end/or cooperative agreements?

Nd . JL_-YES

If (he aoswer to above Is NO, stop here

~  If (he answer (o above is YES, please answer the foUowing;

3. Docs the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(8) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X yes

If Ibe answer to 03 above is YES, stop here

If Ibe answer (o 03 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated ofncers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: - ! Amount;

■ Name: - -! Amounl:

Narnc: Amount;

Name:. ^ Amount;

Name: . . Amount: ;

Exhibit)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OP ENERGY

, EXHIBIT K . . • V

CERTIFICIATION REGARDING NHPA end NEPA COMPLIANCE FOR WAP22

The Grentec identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq., rules promulgaied thereunder
(40 CFR Pans lSOO-1 S08. guidance documents issued by the Office of Management and Budget or the
US Department of Endrgy (USDOE), New Hampshire's DOE executed Historic Preservation
Programmatic Agreement, and USDOE Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy (EERE)
NEPA Determinalion GFO-WAP-2022A (NEPA Dctennination-WAP22).

!

The Grantee agrees to'assure compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act
(NHPA) and New Hampshire's DOE-executed Historic Preservation Progranunatic Agreement prior to
authorizing the use of;funds.

The Grantee agrees that it will not fiind activities that are not "Allowable Activities'* pursuant, to the
NEPA DeterTnination-WAP22, which include:

1. Administrative activities associated with management of the designated Weatherization Office and
management of progrimi and strategies in support of weatherization activities.

2. Development and implementation of training programs and strategic for weatherization effort,
including initial home energy audits, final inspections, and client education.

3. Purchase of vehicle and equipment needed for administrative activities, weatherization energy audits,
installation of measiurcs indicat^ below, and quality control inspections.

4. Weatherization activities provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the respective
Recipients* DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in existing
buildings, are appropnaicly sized, ore covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR 440, and/or approved as part
of the energy audit approval procedures and material spprovals process, and limited to:

a. Building Shell Measures:
i. Install insulation where-needed

ii. Perfoim air sealing
iii. R^ir and replace windows, stonn windows, install window film, awnings and solar
screens . ..

b. Mechanical Measures:
i. Cle^ tune, repair, or replace heating and/or cooling systems
ii. Install duct and heating pipe insulation
iii. R^air leaks in heating/cooling ducts
iv. Initall programmable thermostats .
v. Repair/replace domestic water heaters
vi.. Install domestic hot wata.heater tank insulation

0. Electric and Water Meariires:
i. Install efficient light sources
ii. Install low'flow showerheads

iii. R^lacc inefficient refiigerators with energy-efficient models

5. Energy-related health and safety measures (per Weatherization Program Notice 22-7, or the most
current guidance) pibvided that activities adhere to the'requirements.of New Hamp$hire*8 DOE
executed Historic Preservation Programmatjc Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are limited to:
AwifddG-nOINHU^ }/ ExhibilK-yig^lofS
CFDAff9).S68 \ Grantee InitUU;
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a. CombustionjappHanoe safely inspections
b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of formaldehyde, volatile organic compounds,
flammable liquids, and other air pollutants
c. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections
d. Testing andjor containment, removal or di^sal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture, rcfngerent,
mercury, and other materials so WAP activities may be complied -
e. Conduct radon testing and precautionary measures, including but not limited to, sump pump
covers, covering exposed dirt floors with polyethylene sheeting which contains a rating of no
more than 0.1 .'perm, which is sealed and attached at all seains, walls and foundation penetrations
f. Inspect and install carbon monoxide and smoke alarms
g. Install ventilation as required by the American Society of Heating and Air-Cpnditioning
Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.2*2016 standard, including blower door testing addressing infiltration,

. ventilation, and exhaust

.6. Ineidental and necessary cnersy*related repairs and replacements limited to:
a; Repair/replace damaged windows and doors
b. Electrical a^ plumbing repairs

7. Readine^ activities focused on structural, health, and safety issues required before weathcrization
measures can be completed, provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the respective New
Hampshire's DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in existing
buildings, and are limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors
b. Electrical imd plumbing repairs
c.Roofrepaih
d. Interior and exterior wall repaira
c. Ceiling repairs
f. Floor repairs
g. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, trimming shrubs, arui/or
grading in close proximity to the perimeter of the foundation.

8. Development, implementation, and installation of onsite renewable energy technology 6om
renewable resource^ provided that activities adhere to the requirements of New Hampshire's DOE
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in or on an existing structure, do
not require ground disturbance, no trees are rdnoved, and limited to:

a. PV systahs appropriately sized thai do not exceed 60 kW
b. Solar hot water heating systems approprialely sized that do not exceed 200,000 BTU/HR
c. Battery stprage, if applic^le, attached to a structure (eg. inside a garage) and not visible from
the public right of way

Activities/projects not listed above, including ground disturbing activities and tree removal; activities
where the following elements exist: extraordinary circumstances, cumulative impacts.or connected
actions that may lead to significant effects on the human environment, or any inconsistency with the
'integral elements"} (as contained in 10 CFR Part 1021, Appendix B)as they relate to a particular
project; and activities restricted elsewhere In Award No. DE-EEOOlOOOOl .0000 are not "Allowable
Activities."

I

Activities that do liot qualify as "Allowable Activities" as defined above are subject to additional NEPA
revidv, which requires additional documentation and submission of an environmental questionnaire. If
the Contractor wants to fund activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities," then Contractor
agrees to notify NHDOE WAP Administrator, and to seek NEPA review through (he NHDOE WAP
Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review ere not authorized for Federal funding and the
Award 00-2301 tWUEA \/ Exhibit K-Ease 2 of 3
CFDA 093,568 Gfantec InitiaU:



Contr^tor may not undertake or'fund those activities unless and until the USDOE Contracting Officer,through .the NHDOE jWAP Administrator, provides written audtorizatioB for those activities.
The Contractor a^ees to document confomiance with the Allowable Activities listed above before
oommencemcht of any pioj^. ■ • ' ^

The Conlractor agreed to complete the online USDOE training on NEPA and Historic Preservation at
www.ener^y.t^ov/rK)de/4816S16._

.. Chief Executive Officer
Grantee Representative Signature • Grantee's Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. // /!?
Grantee ̂ jamc Date

Award flO-2)0lNHUEA Exhibit K-PmcJ of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the Stale of New Hampthire. do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES fNC. is a N^v Hampshire Nonprofii Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Mt^ 28. 1965.

I fttfther certify 0ai at! fees and documents required by the Seaetar>' of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing

as far 05 this office is concerned. . • ■

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0005755694

/
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

■ 1 hertio set my hand and cause to be affixed

ihe Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 11 th day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I. Orville Kerr !■ Clerk/Sccroary of Somhem New Hampshire Scfvices
(Noine). (Corpention himc)

(Hereinafter the "Cofporation">. a New Hampshire corphretion, hcrd)y certify thiit: (I) I am the duly
■  (Swie)

elected and acting Clerk/Seotiary of the Coiporaiion; (2) I maintain and have custody end am familiar with (he
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue cenincates with respect to the content) of such
books; (4) (hat the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on October 25.2022. such authority .

I I
to be In force and cfTcct until

(Coni^ i^lnaiioh daie)
:  I

The person(s) holding the b<elow listed positionfs) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instniment for the sale of products end services: -

i
Donnalee Lozeau f r " Chief Executive QfTicer

. INime) iPosiiion)
Rvan Clou'thier Chief Operating Officer. ^

(Name) " (Pojition)
James Chaisson V Oief Fiscal OfTiccr

(Name) | (Position)

(5) The meeting ol the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(Stale of incorporation)

law and the by'laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, emended or rescinded
end continues in full force and effect as of the dale hereof.

FN WrTNESS WHERECF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this
3  davofV7d(/P^j(iP-/^

.  . Clerk/Secretary
STATE OF A)e^ US rrCOUNTY oT^y/^ 3^ rh UJ
On Ihisv^*^ <^y;o^ . 20«J*3 before me, A/TS-T ;
the i^ndersigned Office, personally appeared Orville Ken who acknowledged her/hitTU^lfto be (he

Secretarv . of ^them New Hampshire Services , a corpofation and that she/he as such
Seereiarv • beitig authorized to do SO. executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

fN WITNESS WHEREOF. I hereunto set my hand and ofncial seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Fcace
Convnission Expiration Date:

OEBBA 0. STOKRER
Notary PubQe - Kow Hampshire

My CorvnStaion Gipbea October 7* 2025



v^CORCf . CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITV INSURANCE OAnpuMoorrTTT)

03/21/2023

TWS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOTAFFIRMATTVELY OR NEOATIVELV AMEND. fiXTENO OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFOROEO BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF mSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER/S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ^
IMPORTANT. M th« c*rttflc*to hddar ̂  «n ADDITIONAL INSURED, Ih* poUcyOtt) rmrtl h*v« ADDITIONAL INSURED provlsiont or b* •ndor**B.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED. *ub]«ct to th* t»rm» end corHDOoni of th* poncjr. e»it*li> poOd«» in«y rvqxf r* an •ndonamnt A Btstement on
tW* c«rtmc«t» do** not eonfar rtghti lo di« c«rtinc*U holdor In llau of *uch •ndorMmtntlt).
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lodepcoderit Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance end Other Mattem Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors .
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and AfTiliale I.

I

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Compuoller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services,-Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial-position as of July 3), 2021, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial
statements, and havje issued our report thereon dated March 3,2022.

Inlernal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the
Organizations' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined flnancialj statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organizations' inlcmal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organizations'internal control. > .

• A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct", misstatemchts on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organizations* combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A signifcani deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of dcficichcics, in
internal control that is less severe then a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with|govemancc.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in inicmal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not ideniily any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

till Lisbon Street • Uwision, Maine04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328. FAX: (207) 783-9377 . www.oacpas.nel



ComplUoce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliatc^s combinedj fmancia! statements are free from material misstatcmcnt, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of rmancial
statement amounts. ] However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other maners that are required to be reported unde.r
Government Auditing Standards.

t  '

Purpose of this Report •

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemar control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organizations' internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Coyernment Auditing Standards in considering the Organizations' internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

OueSetU tiLJi^odaUSt ̂ Jt
Cenified Public Accountants

March 3,2022
Lewiston, Maine
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

\  Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
'{

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and efTiliate's complierKe
with the types of c^ompliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplehteni that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2021. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's major f^eral programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
i  . ■ ■:

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility'.Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and iaffliiate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements refen^d to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordartce with auditing
standards generally-accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial-audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Cornptroller General of the United States;
and the audit'requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Adminis&ative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance).. Those Standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform.the audit to
obtain reasonable Assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on t test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliarice with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each, major
federal program. ■ However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services^ Iric. and affiliate's compliance.
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Opinion on Each,/kajor Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2021.

»

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of.Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and-
maintaining effective .internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to a|M)ve. jln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material, effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
proceduits that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to. test and report on internal control over compliance in.
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion-on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in inlernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to. prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control-
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with govcrjiance. '

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not -designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

I

The purpose of this report on irttemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report 00 ̂hedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance
I  ■

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March 3,
2022; which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. Our audit was
conducted for the.purpose of forming an Qpinion on'the combined financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as requirecj by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates
directly to -.the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
sutements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial-.statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
suCh information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used (0 prepare the combined
financial statements of to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OueBetU ̂ JUsodaUs,
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022
Lewiston, Maine
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTEiS TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
i  .

•  YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) Includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31,2021. The information In this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate,
it is not intended to and does not present the fmancial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of'Southem New Hampshire Service, Inc. and affiliate.

NOTE 2; SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule.are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein,certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

. Passrthrough entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

Due to I the COVID-19 pandemic, the Organization was unable to. meet its matching
requirernents in accordance with terms of the grant award. The Organization received a
waiver from the Department of Health and Human Services due to the pandemic td remain in
compi iahce with the grant award during the year ended July 31,2021.

NOTE 4; INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire .Services, Inc. and affiliate has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
9;50% with the Department of.Hcalth and Human Services.
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SOUTjHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND 9UESTIONED COSTS

:  r YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021 .
j. . <

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
I

Internal control.ovef financial reporting:
-Material weakness(cs) identified?

I

Significant deficiencyfies) identified?
1

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weBicness.(es) idencitted?

Significant dcficicncy(ics) identified?

Type of auditor's re^rt issued on compliance
for major programs:

I

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be rcjx)rted in accordance with CFR Section
200.156(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs;

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

I

Coronavirus Relief Fund

Emergency Rental Assistance Program
WlOA Cluster

CCDF Cluster

Dollar threshold use'd to distinguish bet^veen \
Type A and Type 6 programs:

Auditee qualified as' low-risk auditee?
t

Section II Financial Statement Findings

No matters arc repoflablc.

Section HI Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters arc rcpoitablc.

.V None rep

Unmodified

Yes V  No

V  Yes

CFDA Number

21.019

21.023

17.258/17.278

93.575 /■93.596

Sl.588.881

No

orted

10
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INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Board of Direclors of
Southern Nevy Hampshire Services, Inc. and AfTillate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report 00 the Financial Statements •

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Souihem New Hampshire Services;
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of financial position
as of July 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related combined statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash.flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, end maintenance of iniemal control relevant to the preparation and fair
pricsentation of financial statements that arc free from rnaterial missiatcmcnt, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined fi nancial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards.
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit'to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements ere free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the arhounts and disclosures in the
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the corhbined fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organizations' preparation and fair presentation of the combined fi nancial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but.not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organizatioiis' internal control. Accordingly, we express noisuch opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well.as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

III1 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 * FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Opinion . '

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ell material respects,
the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate as of July 31, 2021 and 2020^
and the changes.in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by (7over/rme/r//4u(/(7/rtg

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our .report dated March 3|
2022, on our consideration.of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control-
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with cenain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance end the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the erfeciivencss of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliaie's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New
Hampshire Scrvices, !nc. and affiliate's inlcmal control ovcrfinancial reporting and compliance.

'  Ou£l2etU djissocktes,
Certified Public Accountants

March 3,2022
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, 1NC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

202t 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash S 8,496,942 s 6,456,196
' Investments 10,396,716^ 9,102,421

Grants receivable . .. 3,451,639 3,346,435
Accounts receivable 778,610 721,595
Prepaid expenses .  136,692 159,842
Total current assets , 23460,599 19,786.489

FIXED ASSETS

Land 3,045,918 3,050,918
Buildings and improvements 13,565416 13410,566
Vehicles and equipment t 1,575,022 1,501,951
Total fixed assets 18,186,256 17,863,435

. Less • accumulated depreciation 6,204,453 5,729.951
Net fixed assets 11,981,803 12,133,484

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 468,276 457,683

TOTAL ASSETS $ 35,710,678 $ 32,377.656

UABIUTfES AND NET ASSETS
•

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt s 79,998 J 100,012
Accounts payable . 691,695 729.100
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,187444 1,089,681
Accrued compensated absences . ' 424,497 470,301
Accrued other liabilities 63,446. •.V 53,01)

Refundable advances 1,424,138 336,800
Over applied overhead 179,676 ■ 180,479
Tenant security deposits- 89,232. 83,030
Total current liabilities 4,140,026 3,042,414

LONG:TERM LIABILITIES
■  Long-term debt, less current portion 2,878,216 2.949.253

TOTAL LIABILITIES ■ 7,018,242 5,991,667.

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 28,692,436 26,385,989

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 35,710,678 s 32,377,656

-  S«e independenl auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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. SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FORTHE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2021 AND2020
'/ •

2021 2020

REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue S 57,659,302 S 38,244,769

Program service fees 822,6^2 796,505
• Local funding' 193,876 244.926
Rental irtcome • U27,156 1,191,263

Gifts and pther contributions 301,421 201,839
Interest and dividend income 228,980 302,600

Unrealized gain on investments 1,066,602 398,423
Miscellaneous 744,238 . 462,291

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 62,244,237. 41,842.616

EXPENSES

Program services:

Ch/ild development '  9,606,743 .  9,330,031

Community services / 1,3^3,706 1,505.420

Economic and workforce development 5,786,299 7.450,261

Energy 10,666,407 12,651,510

Language ̂ d literacy 302,502 430,934

Housing and homeless 23,360,337 . 490.824

Nutrition and health 2,111,260 2,307,558

Special projects * 2,316,753 1,876,426

Volunteer services 112,210 127,449

SNHS Management Corporation 2;567,679 2.447,708

Total program services 57,993,896 38,618,121

Support services: '

Management and general 1,943,894 .  1.876.897

TOTAL EXPENSES 59,937,790 . 40,495.018::

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,306,447 1.347,598

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,385,989 25,038,391

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S 28,692.436 S 26,385.989

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the rmancial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC AND AFFILIATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Pfograw Setvicci

EXPENSES

PByrbll •
Payroll t&xea

Fringe bcnefiis

WoHccrs comp. insurance

Retirement berKfiis

Consuiiant and eomractual

Travel and transporunion

Coorerences and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip- rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publicaiiom ■

Subscriptions

Program support -

Interest

Depreciation

Assistance to clie'nis

Other expense

Miscellaneous

lt>4cind

Cain on disposal of assets

SUBTOTAL

Over applied ladireel costs
Ethnloatioas

TOTAL EXPENSES

Economic Nutrition

Child Community Worfcroree Language and . Housing and

Development Services Development Energy Uiemcy and Homeless Health

S  •5,475,^8 $  797.163 $  2,740,989 S  1,286.379 S 204,412 $ 725,285 I  912450

409,962 59.844 204.551 97,778 ■  15,619 54,970 68.761

1.677.891 I38J64 623.172 382.294 23,750 112,040 242,822

127.833 9,424 6.924 11.934 6,245 2.469 27415

■ 375.917 69.893 194425 96.055 8,755 16.206 74.893

72.997 85,282 695.516 970,317' 801 238.467 ̂ •  9,785

35.627 3.264 *  13,780 15.113 1,045 9.210

;  7.250 - 2.245 • -
1,914

569,678 136,788 540470 123.460 24.409 23,349 •  49,916

574 640 800 2,418 .  • 600 384

286.505 32.374 12,180 61,729 7:224 53,747 25,794

2.430 478 (4415) 16,962 • 3,495 2479 8.745

22.375 28,204 9.341 27.769 -
527 3,822

80,815 '21,885 32,839 36.030 2.712 14.294 55,657

3,368 40 1,150 27,045 417 6.622 1.931

40 • - 6,012 1,156 • •

. . 570 • -
-

181,694 .
59.109 •

- -

9.335 • -
- -

•

129,615 6,300 42,909 5476 1,266 •
13,187

234,976 :  3,992 676.974 . 7,518,979 -■ 22,107476 .  393,992 .

167.824 . 10,872 2.937 - t; 300 224,649

37J0S 1.391 915 1,424 2441 830 1.905

1,203,823 • • ft •

.

10.924438 I484J70 5403492 10.751435 302402 23461406 2.127,132

(UI8.D9S) (220464) (16.993) (85.428) • (869) (IS>72)
S 9.606,743 S  1463,706. . S  5,786499 S 10466.407. s 302402 S 23460437 . S 2.111460

See independent auditor's repon and accompanying notes to the Hnanciai suiements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFntlATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (ConUnued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll laxcs
Fringe benefits

Woflcm cotnp. insurance

Retirement bencnts

Consultant and contraaual

Travel and transportation

Conferences and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Subscriptions

Program support

Interest

' Depreciation
AssisiarKc to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous >:

In-kittd

Cain on disposal of asseu

SUBTOTAL

Over applied indirect costs
Elimhtarioas

TOTAL EXPENSES

i- Support

Progrom Services Services .

.... SNHS- Management

Spcdal ■ Voltinieer • Manegement Total Program and

Projects Services Corportttion Services CenemI Total Expenses

S  84,906 S  60,715 S  579.614 S I2,M7,MI S  1,290,991 5 14.158552

6,517 4,220 45,415 967,637 •  94536 1,061373

6;i76. 17.7« ■ 223,039 3:447.290 183,099 3330589

1,770 157 10,661 204,632 7,679 212511

6,118 5,287 43,218 890,667 121,520 1,012,187

2.122,049 2,780 129,628 4J27,622 106.077 4.433399

1,141 1,973 33,587 114.740 4,283 119.023

1,454 50 14.412 27J25 1,025 28550

15,201 * 641.741 2.l2S;il2 44,864 2.169576

1.766 3,232 10,414 25 10,439

593 6,819 21,240 508.205 58,393 566398

2,645 41 8,933 41.793 1,457 43550

2,636 1,762 55,107 I5IM3 •  10,161 161,704

3.079 2.633 26.997 276541 6,779 283.720

605 1.470 42,648 13,123 55,771

.. 7,208 - 7508

900 630 2.100 • 2.100

560 - 45.948 287511 - 287511

. 51.209 - 60544 -
60344

60,191 . 405,478 664522 2.670 666392

2,101 24,342 • 30.963532 •
30563532

•
. 7,306 413388 797 414385

1.225 4.760 47,257 99553 2,7 H 101564

- 1503323 •  - 1503323

(1.049) . . (2.349) P598) - (3598)

U17JI3 iizaio . 2,418,115 59.702.713 1549390 61352303

- (809) (809)

(560) . (50>36) (1.708317) (5.187) (1.714304)

S  2Ji6,753 S  Itiaio 2^67,679.. S 57593396 ,.$ 1543394 $ 59537,790.

nt auditor's report ortd accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC AND AFFIUATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2020

\\ Program Services
.5

" Economic .Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

• Development. Services Development Energy Literacy and Homeless Health

EXPENSES -

Payroll $ 5,556:933 S  933.868 S 2.939,525 S 1,521.964 S  298,880 S  88,866 S  962.139
Payroll taxes 419.856 70.488 221.893 ' 117,494 23,413 6,797 73.387

Fringe benefits 1,573,633 137,463 615.794 463,923 28,359 21,715 238,512
- Woiicers comp. insurance 118,066 9.585 7,651 15,806 2,062 233 30,576
Retirement benefits 314,824 88.609 . 190,679 93,780 10,995 4,856 70,742

Consultant end contractual 56,270 70,777 1,775.844 1,802,601 5,095 370. 14,752

Trove! and transportalion 87,659 10,526 55.412 17,022 600 1,006 29,296

Conferences and meetings - 6,007 • 888 .. 49 140

Occupancy 491.299 76,188 452,980 122,492 30276 2.520 64,985

Advcnisrng 2.664 3.955 2,990 1,171 ■ 50 8.169 424

Supplies 328.400 51.663 33.068 66.117 5,006 • 3.604 35,623
E4)uip. rcnUils and maintenance 6.SS3 2.447 21,351 12,146 2,943 - 10,096

InsurarKC .. 22.852 42,463 7,617 30.740 175 6,450

Telephone 89.596 16,857 30,761 31,439 ~ 2,726 2.023 41,068
Postage 4.825 165 1,568 30.220 330 385 3,720

Priming and publications 3.773 - .. 483 1,851 .

Subscriptions - - 524 . .. .

Program support .  - 20,345 - 60,826 3,676 . .

interest 9.529 - •. - - i. . .

Depreciation 72,782 5.656 41,477 3,191 938 . •  10,294
Assistance to clients 7.850 . 1.084.147 8^36.006 .. 349246 420.251

Other expense 181.944 9.940 7,450 9,318 . 800 303,005
Miscellaneous ■20.004 688 364 1,862 *  13,734 10 " ■ 2,146 •
In-kind 1,472,831 • -• ; i-

. Gain on disposal of assets - . ♦ - .. ■■ .

SUBTOTAL 10,842.143 1,557.690 7.490.571 ..12,740,013 430.934 490,824 2217.606
Over applied indirect costs • . - - - - - .

Eliminations (1,512,112) (52;270) (40,310) .  (88.503) (10,048)
total expenses S 9.330,031 S 1,505,420 S .7,450^61 $12,651,510 S  430,934 S  490.824 S 2.307.558

Set indcpotdent avdiiof's report ond sccompanxtng notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE (ConUnutd)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2020

• Support
.V Program Services Services %

>r SNHS . Martfigemenl

Special Volunteer Management Total Program and Total

Projects . Services Corporation . Services Ccrteral Expenses

EXPENSES -N

Payroll S  9S,SI8 J  80.529 S  688,044 SI3,I66,266 5 1,258.963- S 14.425.229

Payroll taxes ' 7,446 6.021 45,518 992313 93381 1.085.694

Fringe benefits 7,355 16,739 256,823 3,360316 184317 3344,533

Workers comp. insurance 3,120 214 11,822 199,135 7.822 206,957

Retirement bertefits 5,385 3.350 !l0.945 824.165 116327 940.492

Consultant'and comraetuai 1,659.372 449 136,778 5,522,308 87.416 ■ 5.609,724

Travel and transportation 4,805 5,163 41,940.- 253,429 4.639 258,068

Confercrtces and meetings 3,531 SO 28.605 39.270 2.113 4)383

Occupancy 15.080 • 595.088 1,850.908 38,053 • 1,888,961

Advenising •

- 400 1.270 21.093 • 21.093

Supplies • 2.334 4.524 17,992 548331 39.485 587,816

Equip, rentals and maintenance. 4,971 63 15,835 76.405 1398 77,803

Insurance 3,213 .  1.616 51,605 166,731 13338 180,069

TclcphoiK 2.700 2.350 29,193 248,713 6,146 254,859

Postage 7 632 1,207 43.059 15,840 58,899

Printing and puMications •- 84 8 6,199 61 6,260

Subscriptions -
534 1,058 .♦ 1,058

Program support 3.317 - 222373 310,537 -
310,537

Interest ■■ 55.013 64.542 • 64.542

Depreciation 46.914 ... 388,881 570.133 673 - 570,806

Assistance to clients 12.708 68.129 10.278.337 • 10.278337

Other expense 1,798 7,853 522,108 4,435 526,543

Misceilanedus 169 5,265 (30.823) 13.419 3.242 16,661

In-kind - - 1,472,831 • 1.472.831

Cain on disposal of assets ..w- (2.450) (2.450) • (2.450)

SUBTOTAL 1.879.743 127.449 2,672,183 40,549.156 1,877349 42.426,705

Over applied indirect costs - - • - 3 3

ElhDinatlOQS (3.317) - (224,475) (1,931.035) (655) (1,931,690)

TOtAL EXPENSES S 1.876,426 $  ! 27,449-. _ S 2,447.708 ..S3I.6I8,I31. S 1,876,897 540.495.018

See independent aoditof^ repon and aocompanying notes to (he nnancial sutemenis.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. fNC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets S  2^06,^7 %  1,347,598
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash noMTS from operating activities:'
Depreciation 666,892 570.806
Cain on disposal of assets '  . (3,398) .  (2,450)
Unrealized gain on investmenu (1,066,602) (398,423)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets: \  •

Contracts receivable (105,204) 141,978
Accounts receivable (57,015) 99.970

Prepaid expenses 23,150 (64,645)
increase (decrease) in operating liabiliiiesi

Accounts payable (37,405) 71,424

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 97,663 43,876

Accrued compensated absences (45,804) 110,482

Accrued other liabilities 10,435 .  (174.692)-
Refundable advances 1,087,338 (691.943)
Over applied overhead (803) . 152,740

Tenant security deposits 6402 (I.20I)

Total adjustments 575,449 (142.078)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2.881.896. '  1,205,520

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. ;*•

Purchase of ftxed assets (560413) (1,304.678)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 48,500 9,400

Purchase of invescrhents, reinvested dividends and capital gains (227,693) (298,308)

Deposit to restricted cash accounts (10.593) (46.103)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES • (750,099) (1,639,689)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

i.

Payments on long«term debt (91,051) (96,173).

CHANCE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ■ 2,040,746 (530,342)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,456,196 r .  6,986.538

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS • END OF YEAR S  8,496,942
1  ■ ■ > -—^

S  6,456.196

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cuh paid during the year for interest ' S 60.544 64.542.

$00 independent auditor'a report artd accompanying noiei to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, FNC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

JULY 31,2021 AND2Q20 . ^ v.

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the OrgaoizflttoD
Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (SNHS) Is a nonprofit umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough County and
Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of education, child
development, employment, energy and its conservation, housirtg, and homelessness prevention. The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting individuals and families in
achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues ■
is derived from governmental contracts. Services are provided through Southern New Hampshire Services,

.. i; Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accountidg and Prcseatation
The Organization prepares Its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America, which involves the application of accrual accounting;
and accordingly refieci all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. The financial statement
presentation follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-Prq/it Entities (Topic 958):. Presentation of Financial
Statements ofNot-for-profit Entities. Under ASU 2016-14, net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses
are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of
the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and the board of
directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by "donors, and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be fulfilled and
removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations or by passage of time. Other
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be .maintained in

,  perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with "donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

V. The Organization has no net assets with donor restrictions alJiily 31, 2021 and 2020.

Combined Pinaocial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined financial
statements. The combined fmancial statements include the accounts of SNHS Management Corporation
because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50% of the voting power. «

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined, (inancial statements- in conformity with generally accepted accounting
ij principles requires managentent to rhake estimates and assumptions that affect certain retried amounts of
"  assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

it' (Continued)

.  JULY 31,2021 AND 2020 ■
•  ''j

NOTE i: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContinued^ "

Cash dod Casti Cquivaleots
For the purpose of (he combined statements of cash flows, the Organization considers ail unrestricted hi^ly
liquid debt instniments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to Ix cash equivalents. The.
Organiution has no cash equivalents at July 31,2021 and 2020.

Current VutoerabiiUies Due (o Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New Hampshire and
Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization (FDIC) up to $250,000 per
ftnancial instituiiqn. in addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization entered into an agreement with its

. principal banking partner to coiiateralize deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance lihtitation on some
accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed emounts covered by the FDIC and collateralization

. agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no significant risk with respect to these deposits at
• either July 31,2021 and 2020.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable arc stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outstanding at year-^nd. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of eccounting primarily based on

' reimbursable contracts, grants, and agreements. Balances outstanding after management has used
reasonable.collection efforts are wrinen off through a charge to bad debt expense and a credit to the
applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an allowance for uncolleciible accounts
receivable is necessary at July 31,2021 and 2020.

Support and Revenue Recognirion

Contracls with (Customers

Program fees are reported at the amount thai reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to
be entitled for providing childcare services to its clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payers several days after the services are
performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations axe
determined based on the nature-of the services provided by the Organization. The Organization measures
the performance obligations of its childcare services to the point when it is no longer required to provide
services to the client, which is generally -weekly for childcare services. These services are considered to be a
single performance obligation. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is
recognized when services are provided, and the Organization d^s not believe it is required to provide

^  additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact that all of. the
Organization's performance obligations related p contracts with a duration .of less than one year, the
Organization has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in PASS ASC 606-10-50-14(8) and,.
therefore is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period.

The tnmsaction price for childcare services is based on standard charges for services provided to clients.
Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services childcare
subsidy programs., reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established rates. It is the
Organization's policy to set its ratqs to be consistent with current reiipbursement rates. Therefore, amounts
due do not include significant variable consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of reviews and audits.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, fNC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES to COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cbniinued)

JULY3I,202I AND2020

note 1; ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Support and R^enue Recogoitioo • CoDtiDued

Contracts wiihCuslomers-Continued
The Or^iMtion has elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under FAS0 ASC 606-l0-l(M for
applying the revenue standard to a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics. The Organization
accounts for the contracts within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than individual contracts, baaed

t - on the payment panem expected in each portfolio category ar>d the similar nature and characteristics of the
clients within each portfolio. The portfolios consist of major payor classes for childcare services. Based on
historical collection trends and other analysis, the Organization" has concluded that revenue for a given
portfolio would not be materially different ̂ an if accounting for revenue on a contracl-by-contract basis.

The Organization has also elected to apply the practical expedient allowed under FASB ASC 606-10^32-18
for the financing component, as the period of time between the service being provided and the lime that the
client or (hird'party payor pays for the service is typically one year or less.

•  . Private Cram Revenue and Contributions
Private gram contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to
give, or notification of a beneficial Interest is received. Conditional promises" to give are not-recognized
until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. Support'ihat Is restricted by the

^  donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the restriction expires in the
reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an

•  increase In net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to ner assets without donor restrictions and reported in the combined
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support ' ■
Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various state and private entity pass-
through grant agreemenu and contracts to provide funding support of (he Organization's programs and
services provided by the Organization including childcare, child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled in the Organization's
programs. The Organization has'evaludted its grant agreements against applicable accounting standard
guidanM and determined that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or incunrence of allowable qualifying expenses.
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance
with specific provisions of the grant agreements. Refundable advances result from unexpended balances
from these'conditional contributionis end will be subsequently recognized-as'contribution revenue when
donor conditions are met. Federal and state grant revenue comprised approximately 93V* and 91% of total
revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31,2021 and 2020, respectively.

in-Kind Donations

In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair market value of volunteer services and non^paid goods which
were donated to the Organization during the current fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2021
and 2020 were generated through the Head Start and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since
the recognition criteria is not met under fmanciol accounting standards, no in-kind revenues are recognized
OS contributions in the combined financial statements and the in-kind expenses have been eliminated.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020 ...

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

lovestmeots

'. The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities at their fair values .in the combined statements of financial position.
Unrealized gains imd losses>^are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying combined
statements of activities.

Filed A^ts
Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value If donated. It is'
the Organization's policy to capitalize experiditures for these items in excess of SS.OOO. Major additions and

.  renewals are Mpilalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is calculated
using the strai^l-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to forty

. years. Depreciation expense for July 31,2021 and 2020 wai S666,892 and $S70,806, respectively.

i  Fixed assets purchased with gram funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program for which
they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various funding sources have a
reversionary .interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds.'The disposition of fi.xed assets, as well
as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The production costs of
advertising are expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and support
services. Expenses that can be identified with a specific program and support services are allocated directly

•  according to their natural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that arc common to several fiinctrdns,
are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services are those related to operating and
managing the Organization and its programs on a day-to-day basis. Supporting services have been sub-
classified as follows:

• Management and General - includes all activities related to the Organization's internal management.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events throu^ March 3, 2022, which represents the
dale on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and determined that any
subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been considered in the preparation of
these combined financial statements.

13



-  SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. ANd AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

■ (Continued)

^  JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

NOTE i: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recently Adopted Aceountiog ProDouDCcments

Revenue Recognition
In May 20M, the FASB issued ASU 2014»09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the
principles for recognizing revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards.' The core principle of the guidance requires entities to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers In an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goOds or services.
The ASU was effective for fiscal periods beginning,afler December IS, 20IS, however ASU 2020-05,
Revenue from Contracts with Cus(omet:s (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842) - Effective Dates for Certain
Entities, allowed for a one-year deferral for implementation due to the coronavirus. pandemic. The
Organization implemented the guidance for the year ended July 31, 2021 combined financial statements.
The adoption of this update did not result in adjustments to net assets, or any other account balance and no
'account has been affected In the current period by (he application of the guidance.

Contributions.

In June 2018. the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08: Clarifying the Scope and the Accounling Cuidande for
'■ Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The issuance of this ASU was in rMponsc to. the difficulty

■and diversity in practice of distinguishing between e.xchange transactions (reciprocal) and contributions
.  (nonreciprocal), as well as distinguishing between conditional and unconditional contributions. The

guidance is effective for the Organization's fiscal years beginning aHer June IS, 2018, with early adoption
permitted. Management has adopted the ASU efTeciive August 1.2020, qn a modified prospective basis. As
a result, this ASU has been applied to the portion of revenue that has not been recognized before the
efTeciive date in accordance with current guidance. No prior period results have been instated, and there has
been ho cumulaiive-efTect adjustment to the opening balancb of net assets on August 1,2020. '

Recent Aceouotiog Prooouocements

Leases « • ^
in February 2016, the FASB released aSU 20)6-02, Leases (Topic 842), which provides user^ of the
financial staiements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations of
organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for most existing
capital leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases. Both will be reported
on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a term exceeding 12 months.
Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the revised model. The guidance is efTective
for non-public entitles for fiscal years beginning al^er December IS. 2021, with early adoption permitted,
The Organization will implement the guidance in its July 3), 2023 consolidated financial statements.
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption'on the Organization's financial statements.

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
-  Included in SNHS Management Corporation, IS required to maintain separate accounts, and make monthly
. deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of property and other expenditures. In Edition,

'  the Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant security deposits and any surplus cash
^  that may result from annual operations. These accounts are also not available for operating .purposes and

generally need additional approval from oversite agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds c^n
occur. ' , • . ■

>} ' '
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, PNC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Conlinucd)

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020
n  n

hinXF. V FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for measunng fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
lecfmiqucs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted price in
active markets for identical assets or liabiliiie (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to unobscrvable
Inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inpuu and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Siandards Codification 820, Fair Value Meamremerxis. are described as follows:

Level I; Inputs to the valuation methodology arc unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has the ability to
access at the measurement date. •

•

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as;

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active rri&rkets; '

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or littbilitles in Inactive markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

■  If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 Input must
,, • be observable for substantially the full term of the asset orliability.

t  ' ' :

■ Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable forihe asset or liability. • • *

The following is a description of the valuation mclhodologics used for assets measured at fair value. There
have been no changes in the methodologies wed at July 31.2021 and 2020.

V  ' Mufual Funds: Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the fiscal
year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

IS



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE '

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Cominucd)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at fair value
as of July 31, ̂021 and 2020:

2021 ^

Mutual Foods

fLevein

s  -

fLcvd3^

$  :

Totftl

siiuSfiJlfi

Mutual Funds

(Lcvgi n

^9-'Q2.42I

2020

fLevel 21

$  =

(Level 31

S  r

Total

NOTE 4: INV^"

The following is a summary ofinvestments as of July 31:

702!

Cost

Fair

Market
Value

Unreolized
Gains

2020

Cost

Fair
Market

Value
Unrealized

Gains

Mutual Funds S8.M?;ilW suuauifi su\\,m S?.|Q2,121 S19I.Q1S

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as follows: '

mi 2020

Fair Value - Beginning of Year S 9,102,421
Dividends and Capital Gains 227,692 '
Unrealized Gains 1.066.603

Fair Value • End of Year SIQJ9fi.7lfi

$8,405,690

298,308
398.423

59.102.121
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■  • SdUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,202) AND 2020 •

NOTF. V AVAILABILITY AND LIOUIDITY

The Organitation's financial assets available for expenditure, that is; without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position dale comprise the following as of
July 31: , ■

■ 2021 2m

Cash and Cash equivalents S 8,496,942 S 6,456,196
Investments 10,396,716 9,102,421

■ Grants Receivable 3,451,639 3.346,435
Accounts Receivable 778.610 721.595 ■'
Total financial assets available within one year S23.123.907 SI9.626.647

None of the financial, assets arc subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly, all such funds
ait available to meet the needs of the Organization in the next 12 rnonths. In addition, the Organization
maintains several reserve lunds for proper taxes, insurance expenses, and repair and replacement or
emergency nei^ls which arc required by financing authorities. These funds may be withdrawn only with the
af^proval of the financing authority and are not considered by the Organization to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets that provide
sufficient funds for general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other obligations as they become due.

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-termdebt as of July 31:
2021 2020.

SNHS. Inc.

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
SI 1,275 was'due on June 30, ,2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating -with the City of
Manchester to obtain forgivcntts. S 11,275 $ . 11,275

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fi xed monthly principal
installrrvents of $1,833 plus interest through 2020. The note
was refinanced on October 1. 2020, payable in monthly " ^

.installments of $2,182 plus interest through 2030. Interest is
at 4.000% at July 31.2021.end 2020. 200.776

Subtotal ■' $ 2I2.0SI t 729.777
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6: LQNQ.TERM DEBT fCominuedl

SviblQtal Catried Foovafd

SNHS Managemcni Corooration

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by. real estate located on Pleasant St., Epping, NH.
payable in monthly installments of S),0S4 including interest
through 2042. Interest is at 3.500%. ■

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
lotated on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low-income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low-income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Mortgage payable to .New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on, Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low-income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually. •

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will ̂  forgiven only
if real estate remains low-lncome housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Ailds St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments ofS2,6l3 plus interest through 2021. Irtlerest is
at 2.906% at July 3.1.2021 and 2020.

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located on Crystal Ave., Deiry, NH, payable in
mpnthly Irtsiallmcnis of $3,715 including interest through
2031. Interest is at 5.500%.

Mortgage payable-to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,327 including interest through
20)3. Interest is at 7.000%.

2021 2020 .

s. 229.777

189,106

900,000

20,000

194,418

900,000

20,000

•  250,000

170,000

348,801

326.332

250,000

170.000

26,131

373,238

Subtotal $2.415.290 $2.506.341
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, [NC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS "

(Continued)

JULY 31. 2021 AND2020

NOTE 6: LONC>TERM DEBT (Continued^

Subtotal Carried Forward

Moitgage payable lo New Hampshire Housing •Auihoriry
'secured by real estate located in DeerTield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
throu^ 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

LessrCuirent Portion

mi 2020

$2>4iS.Z9Q ' ' S2;506.34l

392,924

1SQQ0Q

2,958,214

Long-term debt, net of current portion 52.878.2lf;

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows as of July 31:

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Total

$  79,998

72,455

76,399

80,571

84,984
2.563.807

simrn

392,924

ISO.POP
3,049,265

• 100.012

52.949.253

NOTE 7: OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under- several operating leases. Total lease
payments for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 equaled 5865,098 and.S68l,354, respectively. The
leases expire at various times through October 2025. Some of the leases contain renewal options that are
contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject lo renegotiation of lease tenm.
Annual leases with the Organization for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled 5222,117 and
$133,204. respectively. These leases have been eliminated in the combined financial statements.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payrnenis for the operating leases as of July 31:

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

5 266,156

77,617'

37,598

36.096

5 417.467
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

?  (Continued) •

■: JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

NOTE 8: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Orgi^iziiion has an Employer-Sponsored 4b3(b) plan ofTering coverage to all of its employees.
Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their wages, while the Organization contributes 10%
of their wages. The pension expense for the years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 was $1,012,187 and
$940,492, respectively.

NOTE 9: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Organization are
subject to the administrative directives, rules, end regulations of federal-, state, and-local regulatory
agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to change-by an act of Congress
or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate furlding to pay for the related cost,
including the additional administrative burden, to comply with a change.

NOTR lOiCQhn-INGENClES AND CONTINaENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the
Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing

•  laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet been determined.

Cotton Mill Square
•  r\ ..

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the Community Development
Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community. Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and was

• awarded $1,000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of an abandoned historic
cotton mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project (Cotton Mill Square) created 109
units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for low to moderate income households.

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS. Management
Corporation entered into a subrecipicnt "agreement with the owners of the Project (Cotton Mill Square LLC)

'  lb provide" a promissory note and .mortgage of the remaining award amount of $800,000. The 20 year note
to ConomM'll Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the principal is forgivable at a rate of 5% each year,
the Project maintains the required minimum of 55 low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occ.upancy on August 22, 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulaiions as of July 31, 2021 and 2020. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into noncompliance
in future periods. Therefore, SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded any contingent receivable
or liability related to this transaction. The note repayment is accelerated if the units fall out of
compliance.
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SOUtHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED financial STATEMENTS
.  (Continued)

JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

NOTE lOiCONTINCENCIES AND CONTINGENT LI ABILITIES fContinued) , '

Cotton Milt Square fCoptinuedl

In October of 2017, the subrecipicni agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was amended to cease the
annual S% debt forgiveness. This modification efTectively holds the promissory note balance at S720,000
which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long-as the Projecl.maintains compliance
with the original agreement's terms. This modification did not change the contingent receivable or liability
with SNKS Management Corporation.

Coronavlrus Pandemic

An outbreak of a novel strain coronavirus (C0V1D>19) has spread to the U.S. and in March 2020, the
World Health Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The Organization was unable to meet
its matching requirements in accordance with the terms of its Head Start Programs grant award due to the
COVID-19 pandemic but received a waiver from DHHS to remain in compliance. Many programs (hat
historically had direct contact with panicipanls were closed or changed significantly while staff was
retained. However, the extent of the future Impact of COVID-19 on the Organization's operational and
financial performance is not known as of the date these financial statements were issued, but management
will continue to monitor conditions as the COVID-19 p^demic continues and take further action if
considered necessary.



OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A
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Mkhacl R. Dunn. CP.A. Cory A. Wigani. CP.A..
iQnalhin A. Huijcy. C.P.A.. MSX ^ C. Joseph Wolverion. Jr.. CP.A.
Steven R. Lomonta|ne. C.PA.

INDEPENDENT AUDJTOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEME^ARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Afniiajc
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial staicmcnis of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 3l,202rand 2020, and our report
thereon dated March 3, 2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial
statements, appears on page 1. Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the
combined financial statements as a whole.

The combining information in Schedules A and B (pages 23-24), the schedules of revenues and
expenses • by grant (pages 25-29), -rc(|uircd by the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of
Strategic Initiatives, and the required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B.
Milctte Manor, and Sherbumc Woods (pages 30-49), rci^uircd by the New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority ere presented for purposes of additional analysis and arc not a required part of the combined
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prcparc the combined financial
statements. The combining information lias been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the combined financial stalcmcnls and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
combined financial slaicmcnts or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a whole.

OueSkUfSlJissodaUSt^Ji
Certified Public AccounUnts *

March 3.2022

Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Sch€dul€ A

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULYJI.JOJI .

/ *
SNHS

''' Mant(erTKQt •

;  ■ SNHS.Inc. , Corporation Sub-Total '  Elimination Toul

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

CtJh $  175.062 S  8.321.810 S 8.496.942 S  - $ 8,496.942
lamtmeAU ' 10.396.716 10.396,716 . 10,396,716
CrsAU reccivtblc 3,4I9.74J 31.896 3.411,639 . ).43l.63»

Aceounu recclvtble 778.6)0 778.610 ' 771.610
Prcpild cepcfua 76,019 60.603' 136.692 .. 136.692

Due from other corporti Ions 3.926.1)1 (I.123.0II) 2.401.717 (2.401.717) .

Total cvnttuuaeti 7.197.7)3 11.064.624 21.662.316 {2,401.717) 23,260.199
• 1 •

FLXED ASSETS

-

Land 619.910 2.426.008 3,041.911 •- 3.041.911

Buiidmp end improwemcnu 2.22i:i7t 11.343.7)8 13,565.316 . 13.565,316
Vehides and e^sipmeni IJ20.332 254.700 1.575.022 . 1.575.022

TottlTised ksicts 4.I6I.II0 14.024.446 18.186.256 18,186.256

Lot • accumulated depreciation 1.683.134 , 4.521.319 6.204.413 6.204.453

Net fixed istcis 2.471.676 9.503.127 ll.981.80r.. - 11,981.803

OTHER-ASSETS
)■

Rcttrkted cash 29435 439.041 468.2.76 . 461.276

TOTAL ASSETS ' S  10.105.64) $ 28.006.792. $ 38.112.4)5 S  (2.401,757). S 35.710.678

• LUBILITieS AND NET ASSETS
'• -'

CURRENT LtABILITICS

Cuton portion of ion|>icnn debt $  29.770 S  50.221 t 79.991 5  • S 79.998
Accoonu payable ' 624.2)1 67.464 691.695 r 691,695
Accrued payroll and pa^Toll taxes 254.234 913.110 1.187.344 -• 1.187.344
Accrued compenated absences '■ - 424.497 424.497 - 424.497

Accrued other liabilities 50.755 12.691 63,446 63.446
Refbndabic advances 1.424.131 - 1.424.138 . 1.424.138
Over tf^icd overhead. 179.676 179.676 179,676
Tcnaru tccuriiy deposits 30.5'2t 58.704 89,232 . 89.232

• fi\ Due to other corpofilioru 1.341,985 1,019.772 2.401,757 (2.401.757) -

Total corrent liabilities ).935J17 2.606,466 6.541.713 (2.401.757) 4.140.026

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Loni-tcrm debt, less concfli portion 182481 2,695,935 , 2.87I.7I6 • 2.I7I.2I6

TOTAL LUBIUTIES 4,117.591 5.302,401 9.419.999 (2,401,757) 7,0I8;242

NET assets without DONOR RESTRICTIONS 22.704.19! 21.692.436 28.692.436

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS ^^Ij006j7^ ̂ ^Tn2^4^^J2j4OI^^.^^5j7l0j^
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SchtduU B

SOim<ERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBfNINC SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

SNHS

' Manegement'

SNHS. Inc. Corporation SuthTotel Elimlnstion Total

REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
%-

.

1

Gnnt revenue S  S7.946.6I) S S  57.9.46.613 $  (2I7JII) S 57,659.302

Prognrn icrvice fen > . 2.)19 820.333 822.662 822,662

Loce] fundtRS - 193,876 193.876 • 193.876

Rcntel income - 1.227.156 I.227.IS6 . I.227.IS6 -

QiRstnd other convi^ioitf US.272 116.149 301.421 391.42) .

iMcrtst (ncornc ISS 228.825 . 228.980 • 228.980

Unmliud (itn en invnimcnis • 1,066.602 1.066.602 ■ 1.066.6()2

Itwkind J lJ0).t2) • 1.203.123 .  (1.203.82)) •

MiKeittneoio SS0.07$ 417.033 . 967.108 (222.870) 744.238

TOTAL REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT S9.8ltJ67 4.069.974 .  6).958J4I (1,714.004) 62.244,237

EXPENSES

Preinm icrvkcs:

ChiM OevclofifflCAt 10.924.1)8 • 10.924,138 (UI8.095) 9.606,74)

Conmiuniiy Scnica ' 1.584.270 1.584.270 (220.564) .  1,363.706

. Ecortomic u>4 Workforce Dev. S.IO).293 • 5.803i92 (16.993) 5.716,299

Eftcriy i0.7Sl.l)S • 10,751.835 (85.428) .10,666.407

Lengvtose end Literacy 302,SQ2 •  - 302.502 • 302.502

Housini end Kenelut 23.361.206 • 23.361.206 (869) 23.360J37

Nutrition end Hcellh ' 2.127.132 • 2.127.1)2 (15.872) 2.IIU60'

Spcciel Prejccu 2.317.31) 2 jl 7.313 (560) 2,316.753

Volwitcer Services • 112,210 112.210 - 112,210
*  • 1 • «
SNHS Mentt|cmen} Cerpotttion - 2.418.II) 2.418.1)5 -  (50.436) 2.367.679

' Toiel profraffl urvicn J7.284J98 2.4)8.115 59.702.713 (1.708.817) 57,993,896

' Support Kpricet:

Mtnatemeni end generii 1.949.081 1.949.081 ■  (5.117) 1.943.894

TOTAL EXPENS.ES 59.233.679 2.418.115 61.651,794 (1.714,004) ' 59.937.790

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS 634.588 1.651.859 2.306.447 •
2,306.447

NET ASSETS - BECINNINC OF YEAR 5.333.457 21.052.5)2 26.385.989 . 26,385.989

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  5.988.045 S. 22.704.391 S 28.692.4)6 S  - I 28.692.436
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANJ .

FOR THE VEARENDEDJULY31.2021 ''

St&le of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

Head start Program

For the Period

August 1,2020 to July 31,2021

Fund«305

REVENUES

Pro^am Ainding
In-kind

Atlocaied corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

- Workers comp. insurance

Retirement, benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Occupartcy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance
InsurarKC

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Depreciation

Assistance (p clients .

Other expense

Miscellaneous

In^kind .

Administrative cosu

Total expenses

. Excess of expenses over revenue

5,744,821

(.055,443

18,027

6,818.291

2.971.787

222,486

1,002.519

67,870

218.254

41,070

27,457

353.209

.  434

189,024

2.213

.  13,873

34,794

1,1)9

40

24,089

12,259

61.278

24,106

1,055.443

494,967

6,818,291
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

•  ̂ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Slate ofNH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Progrem

For the Period

October 1,2020 to July 31.2021

Fund"« 630.20

REVENUES -

Program Rinding
Other revenue

Allocated corporate urtrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

' Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advertising .

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications
Subscriptions

Program support

Depreciation
Assistance to clients

Other expense

Miscellaneous

Administreiive'costs

Total expenses

-Excess of expenses over revenue

S,010,833

.. , 50
'2,167

•8,013,050

236,761

17.758 ■

82,919

590

15,257

18,181

5,301

328

47,143

366

18,751

1,805

835

;  15.952

13,273

3,006.

285

39,653

2,163

7,448.172

5

599

43,947

8,013,050
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, fNC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

State of NH Governor's Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August I., 2020 to September 30,2020

Fund<^63(LI9

REVENUES

Program funding S 137,270

Total revenue 137,270

EXPENSES

Payroll 66.838

Payroll taxes 5,031

Fringe benefits' 25.MO

Workert comp. insurance ' 189
Retirement benefits 3.732

Consultant and contractual 5,533

Travel end iransporiaiion 857
Occupancy 7,200
Advertising * 50"

Supplies 2,678
Equip, rentals and maintenance 460
Insurance 1.807

Telephone 2,089
Postage _ 1,217
Program support 3,649
Assistance to clients (343)

Miscellaneous . 28

• Administrative costs 11.115
Total expenses 137,270

Excess of expenses over revenue : $ •
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT .

£  FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021
■  -r ' . J

Stale of NH Governor's Onice of Strategiclmilaiivcs

Early Head start Program

For the Period

August 1,2020 to July 31, 202 J

Fund 0 300

REVENUES

Program funding
bvkind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

S  1.434.114

I2I.20B

12,213

1.567,535

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits
Workers'comp. Insurance.

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel end transportation

Occupaney

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenarKe
insurance

Telephone

Posuge

jnteresi

Depreciation

Other e^tpense

Miscellaneous

In-kind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

767,184

57.,829

222,132

17.389

49.041

3,525

3,077

86,815

75

35,540

42

2,203

21.161

55

9435

29,938

17,130

980

121,208

122,876

1,567,535
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVltES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GKaNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021

Electric Energy Assisiance

For the Period

August l,2020{oJuly3l,202l

Fund n 6f>S

REVENUES

Other revenue $ 669,174.
Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 1,018
Total revenue . 670,192

EXPENSES

• Payroll 323,953
.Payroll taxes 24,492
Fringe benefits 106,513
Worlcen comp. insurance * g2g

Retirement bcneftis 20,855
Consultant and contractual 23,368
Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings 328
Occupancy 53^321
Advertising 416

Supplies 24,416
Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,265
Insurance 2,424
Telephone 13,720
Postage. . 9,501

Printing and publications 3,006
Subscriptions 285

. Depreciation 787

Other expense 3

Miscellaneous ■ 347

Adminlstralive costs .56,173

Total expenses 670,192

Excess of expenses over revenue S

.  J- ••
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WHISPERING PfNES II

(FORMERLY: EPPINO SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. AI9999I-W6)

STATEMENTS OF FrNANCIAL POSITION ,

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Low Payable
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-T^RM LIABILITIES
Due to Affiliate- -

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOtAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

.6,53?

2,488

38

ASSETS
'  ■

2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations S  30.SJ0 15,319

■ Prepaid Expenses 7,405 8.433

Total Current Assets 37,935 23,752

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST. FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits 12,884 11,484

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve 21,712 40,591

Operating Reserve 79.373 79,253

Tax Escrow 5,228 8,531

Insurance Escrow 2,911 2,791

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 109424 131,166 -

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land 166,600 166,600

Building.and Building Improvements 592,108 580,758

Tola! Rental Property 758,708 747,358

Less Accumulated Depreciation 75,722 59,301

Net Rental Property 682.986 688,057

TOTAL ASSETS . S  843,029 $  854,459 ,

6.312

5,548

205

9,063 12,065

12,884 11,484

29,019* 18,312

181,569 188,106

210,588 206.418 .

232,535 229,967

610,494 624,492

S  843,029 S  854,459
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WHlSPERfNGPfNESn

(FORMERLY: EPPfNG SENIQR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

i  . . 2021 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income S  170,685 %  171,842

Laundiy Income 2,475 2.275

Other Income 1,684 1,466

Interest Income • Unrestricted 12 14

Interest Income • Restricted 211 1.345

Total Income .175,067 - 176.942

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 31,548 42,309

Utilities •  45,016 42,448

Maintenance. 62,604 39,165

Depreciation '  16,421 15,853

Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note 6,704 6,921

General Expenses 26,772 35,878

Total Expenses . 189,065 182,574^

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (13,998). (5.632)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 624.492 630,124

NET assets - END OF YEAR S  . 610,494 $  624,492
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WHISPERJNG PINES II
(FORMERLY; EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

PGR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Management Fees
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Legal Expenses
Telephone
■Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
Utilities

Electricity
Fuel
Water and Sewer <
Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE
Maintenance

Custodial Supplies
Trash Removal
Snow Removal

Crounds/Landscaping
Elevator Repairs and Contract
Repairs (Materials).
Operation (Contract)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

Interest -NHHFA Mortgaoe Note

General Exwnses
Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes
Retirement Benefits
Woflunan's Compensation
Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

202i 2020

S  . 14,400 S  14,400
6.78! 16,704
2,033 4.701

56 .

3,IS3 2.953
5.I2S 3,551

31.548 42.309

19,887 20.098
8,177 9,677

15,713 11,613
1.239 1,060

45,016 42.448

72 318
2.245 2,064

10,153 10.9'5.l
- 17

3,718- 5,045
37,829 ■ 17.218

■  8,587 3,552
62.604 39,165

16,421 15,853

6,70'4 -  . 6.921

19,163 26,490
516 1.273
631 1.670
385 .  915

6,077 .5.530
26.772 35.878

S  189.065 $  182.574
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WHISPERJNG PINES It

(FORMERLY: EPPINC SENIOR KOUSINC ASSOCIATES LtMITEO PARTT^ERSKIP).
, (PROJECT No. A19999I-0W)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS'

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY ) 1.2021 f

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RtwulQptfiiipfa

Income

Ttfitni P»id Rcni

HAP Rent Snbsidy

Totil Rentjllncome

SeviM iKome

ImcTcst Income

CoRunaeitl Income

.  Othu Income

Totil Renal Ooffitlont Recclnu

EKDCTttee

Adminin/iiive

Mtintenonce'

kicretl • NHHFA Monp|c NoK
InierM • Othci Notct

General

Othei

Tool Rental OoemloM Pktmnemtnti .

C^h Provided by Renlil Qnentiont

Amort batlM afMonme

Cms Provktol bv Rental QperititHU

AfKr

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to MinawiTKnl Atni

Owner AOvancc«

Tranifet from RcflrictcO Ciih Rmf\-Cl

end Eicfowi

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

TriiHfm IB R«mcifd CmK Retervet

■fwl (Mrnvn

hlrtllWgrFhrt l\>KU
Reoavtnent of Owner AdarKca

QOwr PirtnetihtB Eionwei
Tnnifen to Tenant Security Dcootil Actoum

S  136.713
•  IJ.97J

2A73
12

l.dM.

jo^n
43.016
63.664

6.704

26.n2

6.312

10.707

61.561

46.413

M.330

S  I70.6t5

[l74.t4J)
13

i6J22i

79J73

• 37.763

NetlncmneorlfWrrMet inPmicei AceoumCnh
PfBlt<t Accwit*i Cith Batinee m Beainnmi of Ycet
Proleet AettM'mf>th Bttinee ii EnddfYeer

Comoortlfan of Preieei Aecouni Cash
H«linee iiEndorYrtt

13.211
13.319
30,530

20.530

PenyCath

Unm^tiieted Rwetve tif ■aolleiMe^
Oecoraiing Rcstr%-e
Operaiini Rtene
Oibcr Rctervc

TotalPrltv CmK »nd llnffWteted Rettrvo

• Totil PrnieaAccQumCtoh '
it End of Year ! . S 30.530
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V.'HISPCRING PINES II

(FORMERLY; EPMNG SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No.AIP999l-<M6)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

' • PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY i 1.2020

■y

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RtnltlQatrntetH

Income '

Tcntnt Plid Rcni
HAP ^ni Subcid)-

Tcul Renal Income

Service lacene
IdiotA Income
Coauncrcal Income
Other Income

TfXll Rcnnl Qaefmtiofte Beeetnet

Eincfttee

AdauDiuntivc
Utilkio
Mtimetunce
Imerest • NHHFA Monp|< Note
Intemi • Otha Nmci
(knenl
Other

Toul Renitl QpcmtioM Dwhuraemcna
CMh Pfpvidcd bv Renal QpcmteM
AmtmlalWinarMnrleeec

Ctih Provided bv Rcntil Qncmtioni

After Debt ScTYkc

S  I4MS1
. 22.961

2.i7i
14

T.466.

4J.446
42.44t
)5.)5I
6.921'

)5.I7I.

6.09S

S  171,642 .

173.J97

(166.044)
9.353

).4St.

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due toMintfcmcntAtcnl ■

thmoAdansa
Tfifufef fnwn Rccirknw! Cith Rweft-m '

ini Eitrew

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Ttintfm n Reitncitd Cnh Racrvct

irri EKTgyi
PucchatcofFacdAMcM

Rtiavmcm of Owrxt Advencci
Other Pertnctthio fctpcmw

TfiMrmi9T5P4(H SttvriTy PrmiiAnwni

(13.791)

S0.6S9

43.739

36.161

43.739

Net Incfcaie ar (Decm«1 In Pfol«t Accbwil Celh

Prein) Atgwni Ciih BiUnst ii Bsiinnini fl f Yni
Profegt Acte«nl Ceih BiHncc il Et>d of Ycir

Comnoiltton afPralcct Aecouni Cuh
Balance ■! gndofYetr

(1.732
15.319

15.319

Pewvraah

Unrcctrtart Rcccfvc t if aoBtkahlc)
Dccortting Rcurvc
Opemint Reserve
Other Reserve

7915) PfliY Citfi iffi Unrfflfifflti RtKfVH

Total Project Aecatim Cash'
at End of Year S  15,319
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. AI9999I-CM6)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS ■

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Description of Fund •

Balance '

Deposits

Transfers"

From

Beginning of Operations Interest
Period Accoiint Earned.

Withdrawals

Transfer to

Operations
Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

2,791 $ 7.840 $ 1  5 *  7,727 $ 2,911

8,531 28,375 21 31.699- 5,228

40,591 10,200 63 29,142 21,712

79,253 .. 120 . 79,373

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves aod Escrows S 131,166 S 46,413 S 211 $ 68,368 $ 109.224

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 3). 2021

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION •

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO.

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (13,998)

16,421

6,312

10,200

29,142

S  13.033
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

VEAR-TO-DATE.COMPILATION OF OWNERS* FEE/DISTRJBUTION

-• FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

year . DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2001

12/31/2002

12/31/2003

12/31/2004

12/31/2005

12/31/2006

12/31/2007

12/31/2008

12/31/2009

12/31/2010

I2V3I/2OII

12/31/2012

12/31/2013

12/31/2014

12/31/2015

7/31/2016

7/31/2017

7/31/2018

7/31/2019

7/30/2020

7/30/2021

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243.855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

142,249

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

243,855

5,895

7,200

6,120

7.200

243,855

487,710

725,670

962,325

; ,206,180

1,443,915

1,687,770

1,931,625

2,175.480-

2,419,335

2,663,190

2,907,045

3,143,700

3,387,555 .

3,631,410

3,773,659

4,017.514.

4,261,369

4,505,224

4,749,079

4,992,934
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR
(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

.STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash • Operations
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

S  17,999
9,077

27.076 '

S 19,889

9,178 .

29,067

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED
Tenant Security Deposits 16,746 16,316

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve
Tax Escrow

99,929

70,015

6,552

84,264

69,966

6,548
Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 176.496 160,778

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land .

Building and Building Improvements
Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated Depreciation

176,000

1,157,330

P33,330
153,032 ,

176,000

1,157,330

1,333,330
121,276

Net Rental Property " 1,180498 1,212,054 ■

TOTAL ASSETS S  1,400,616 s 1,418,215

UABIUTfESAND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LUBILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

$  2403

1,081

s 2,908

714

Total Curreht'Liabilities 3484 •  3.622

DEPOSIT LUBILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability 16,763 16,332

LONG-TERM LUBILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

49,710

1,170,000

1419,710

45,834

1.170,000

1,215.834.

Total Liabilities 1,239,757 1,235,788 ..

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

TOTAL LUBiLITIES AND NET ASSETS

160,859

5  1,400,616.

.182,427

1,418,215
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES .

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

. .2021 2020

ftENTAL OPERATIONS
Income •,s

Tenant Rental Income S  206,568 $  209,157

Laundry Income 1,527 1,355

Other Income - •  150

Interest Income • Unrestricted 15 21

Interest Income - Restricted 118 124

Total Income 208,228 210,807

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative •« 53,312 60,452

Utilities 61.643 59,251

Maintenance 48,666 66,329

Depreciation 31,755 31,397

General Expenses 34,420 32,437

Total Expenses 229,796 249.866

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (21,568) (39,059)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 182,427 221.486

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

t

$  160,859
■  ̂ 182-,427
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY; J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES: 202i .  2020

Administrfltivc- ■

Advertising S  . - S  25

Management Fees 17,688 17,688

Salaries and Wages 27.751 28,918

Fringe Benefits 3,582 8,636 .

Legal Expenses 20 446

Telephone 1.446 1,352

Other Administrative Expense 2,825 3,387

TOTAL administrative EXPENSE 53.312 60,452

Utilities

Electricity 33,466 32,400

Fuel 14,900 15.602

•Water and Sewer 11,865 10,067

Other Utility Expense t.412 1,182

TOTAL UTILiTY EXPENSE 61,643 59,251

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies 1,115 .689

Trash Removal 2,862 2,617

Snow Removal 7,971 4.170

■  Elevator Repairs and Contract 6,238 6.047

Repairs (Materials) 26,098 48,763

Repairs (Contract) .  4.382 4,043

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 48,666 66,329

PfUniFiflhon 31,755 31,397

General F.xjjensc5 . -• S'

Real Estate Taxes 22,098 20.974

Payroll Taxes 2,121 2.225

Workman's Compensation v 1,120 827

Retirement Benefits 645 -

Insurance 8,436 8,411

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES .  34,420 32,437

. TOTAL EXPENSES 5  229.796 S  249.866
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I.B. MILETTE MANOR

(RORMERLY: ;.D. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY M. 20>1

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rcntti Qgffiligzg
limme

TcfUAl Pud Rcm

HAP Rent Svbsidy

TonlRtWi! Iftcante

Service Income

luacft Income

Cocnmcrcul (acome

Oibcrlocotne

TnnI Rewtti Openliani Retetnti

EKBCTXei

Adminbuilivc

UliliTici

Moiaiciuoce -

Ituemt - KHHFA Mortpfc Note
■  Imemi - Other Notes

Gcrtcral

Other

Teal Retrtal Qpetiikmi Oiih»rt«ntnU

Ctsh Prmided bv Retitil OpentkHU

Amenimien efMoflntc

Cmh ProvMcd b* Renal OBcntiem

After Debt Swtce

/

S  lld.<97

19.171

I.J27

15

5M44

61.64}

49J7I

34.470

S  206i6t

'  20i:il0

9.t)l .

9,132

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to MtmoemtfrtAeefli
Ovmei AdvincCT

Ttynrrer from Rwiricied Tuh Reseivn
■fid EitfOOT

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

TriTtffm » tairiflri CiTti Rffffrn
ind Escrows

PufChMeefPaed Aesets

ReMvmenl efOwntt Adviticei

(^htr PinncfShieEnoeftses
Tamfew le Teeifil Seoifitv De opiit Aeeennl

Wti twfCfiH flf {Dnmal in ProiKi Awogni Cwih
Pmlect Aeceuu Ceih Hitiece «l Beeinnmi af Yetif
Preifct Aecewt Cith Btitficc t1 End of Ycsr

Cemeetltieti ef Proieci Accooni Cuh
BilinceitEodefYeir

3.176

13.600

(2)

).t76

13.391

iLWOl

17.999

17.999

Pnn:Cpa

Unmtrictcd Rearve tif iaetieiMct
Deceniini Reserve
Opcrttinf Reserve
Other Resent

Teal Prttv Ciih ifid Unfertrretcd Reicrvw

Teal PrekQAttanntCuh
nEfidefYcti S  17.999
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i.B. MarTTE MANOR

(FORMERLY-. LB. MIIETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDUU OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJEa OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY SI, 2020

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Q{g2Lfi8SllltBU

Ittcome

Tciunt Piid R<flt

HAP Rcm Sublidjr

0  R«n«l Income
Service (ftcome

-  tmont (ftcerne

ComncTcial iDGomt

Oibcf Income

Tof) Rfwtil QpcfiiteM Rcccipu
Ejnxfwei

Administnttvc

UUIhies

Metftiensocc

Interest • NHHFA Men|a|c Note
Interest • Other Notes

Gencnl

Other

Tcml Rmisl QomtSons Diibtincmtnts

Cnh PrevWcd bv Renul Qocnttons

^fnqpfaiion ofMortnte
CmK Pmrided hv Reniil Qoernioni

ABcfDcte Senrice

S  110.7)6

l.)53

21

ISO

62.467

39J5I

64.776

32.4)7

t  209.I37...

210.61).

1211.9)1)

_iU4ll

<U<t>

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Mtyeemew Aeeni
OwTKi Adyncei

Truisfer fmm Cm)i Rettfrtt

iirfEKrotfi

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

TftMfffi to RwtriCTKl Ctth Rwerm

iimI Exen>u-s

Pwehtsc ot Fi^ Altctl

Renewnrnt of Ovmcf Adv»ac«

fthfrPirwcwhioEapefilw

Tftfiifwr tn TfMfit S«<uriiv Peotmi Account

217

112,474

IS.600

tS.9))

112,691

I0I.)53

Net IfKTCtie or /rwrftft in Pwifel Aceaunt Cash

Pp-^1 Accotim Cneh Biltnee it Bctinnini of Yrtf
PreWei Aetount Btlanec «t End of Yclt

ConiPQtttion of ProWt Ace oum Ctih

2.III

17.001

t9,M9

I9.lt9

UwfWTTfcttd Reserve firaaalkabte)

Decomiaf Reserve
Opcreiing Reserve
Other Rcser>'e

Totil Prttv Ceth efKl Uwewrietetl Rcscrvci

Tat«t Prnleci Aegounl Cash

■tEwttftTVenr S  19.149

-V
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J.B.MILETTC MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND. ESCROWS

' FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021

Description of FurKi

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Efilifld • Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations
Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tex Escrow -

Replecemetit Reserve

Operating Reserve

6,548 S

.  84,264

69.966

15,600

4  S

65

49

S  6.552

99,929"

70,015

Total Restricted Casb

Reserves aqd Escrows S 160,778 S 15,600 S 118 S $  176,496

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION.

JULY 31,2021

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED. ITEMS

Repair and.Mainienartce Expenses Reimbursed Through. Replacemeni.Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

S  (21,568)

31,755

15,600
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.  SHERBURNE WOODS ,
(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

.  (PROJECT No. HAP P0A 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION •

JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

202! 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash • Operations

Prepaid Expenses .

■

S 80,916

7,851

S 100,810

7.936

Total Current Assets 88,767 108,746

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED
Tenant Security Deposits

\

15,517 14,871

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacemerit Reserve
Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

•

180,572

67,945

6,707

3,046

153,325 .

67.842

5,927.

3,480

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves 258470 230,574 '

RENTAL PROPERTY .

Land

Building and Building improvements

Total Rental ̂ operty
Less Accumulated Depreciation

t

211,000

907,200

211,000
907,200 .

1,118400

75,935

1,116,200'
.52.355 ,

Net Rental Property i.04246S 1.065,845

TOTAL ASSETS 5 1,404,819 S 1,420,036

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LUBILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable
Accounts Payable
Accrxted Expenses

S 17,642

2414

38

$ 16,453

370

Total Current Liabilities 19,894 16,823

DEPOSIT LUBILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LUBILITIES

Due to AfTiliatc

Mortgage Loan Payable. Net of Current Portion
Total Long-Term Liabilities

15,467 14,822.

94,862

851,614

946,476

133,513

869448

1,002,761

Total LlBbilitles

• r

981,837 1,034,406 ,

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 422,982 . 385,630

TOTAL LUBILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 1,404,819 eL 1.420,036
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•  . SHERBURNE WOODS .

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERflELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED-PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED HJLY 31,2021 AND 2020

7021 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income S  266,018 $  250,537

Laundry Idcome 2,670 .• 2,545

Other Income 1,290 1,084

Interast Income • Unrestricted '  53 68

Interest Income - Restricted 370. .  2.320

Total Income 270,401 256,554

Expenses (See Schedule) r

Administrative 29,567 44,581

.  Utilities 34,566 33,892

Maintenance 89,326 68,243

Depreciation 23,580 23,580

■ Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note 23,473 24,582

General Expenses 32,537 34,005

Total Expenses "  233.049 228,883

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 37,352. 27.671

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 385,630 357,959

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $  422.982 S ' 385.630
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

202! 2020

S  25 S  150

18,000 18,000
1,909 l6i08S
104 ^  4,911
284 .

2472 2,299

6.873 3,136

29,567 f. 44.581

20,810 20,299

7,886 9,276

4439 2.425

1,531 1,892

34,566 33,892

EXPENSES:

Admimstrative

Advertising

Management Fees
SaJaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Legal Expenses

■* Telephone
Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
Ul'l'ties.

Electricity
•Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies
Trash Removal
Snow Removal

Repairs (Materials)

2,789
28,761
37i2l8
20,558

121
,3,170

21,724
43,228

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 89426 68,243

Depreciation ■ 23,580 ■  23,580

Interest - NHHFA Mortcace Note 23,473. ■ 24.582 .

General Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 26,926 '  26,673
Payroll Taxes 146 1,237
Workman's Compensation • •  105 788
Retirement benefits 144 276

Insurance « 5,216 5.031
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 32337 34,005

TOTAL EXPENSES .  S • 233.049 ..S 228.883
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SHER8URNE WOODS ■

(FORXeRLY: SNHS OEERflELO ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROiECT Nb. hap PBA 90I-02-OS>

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

.. FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 11.2021 • .

SOURCe OF FUNDS

ReitmOperntofa

InCQITK

Tcaint Paid Rcni

HAP Rcni Subsidy

Tem RctuI Inetmt

Service I sceme H

Intatsi iRCome

Conuocrcial Income

Other lacome

TottI Rcrtfil OperaiiatH Rccffau

Expcma

Adminisirviive

UQitiea

Maintcittnce

Interest • NHHFA Mongtfe Note
iBtcmi • Other Notes

OcDcrt)

Other

Toul Rental Qpcratbni Diiburtenvents

- Cash Pro^tdtd bv R^al OBCrtilom

^Q2Qi2i||j2Rfi£^2flUSS
CMh Prevktal bv Rental OacrttiOM

After Debt ScfYice

S U3.4S9

142.529

2.670-

S3

1.290

29.4 U

34.566

17.412

23.473

32.537

16.445

S  266.011

270,031 .

(207.502)

62.329

46.014

OTHER RCCEiPTS

Due to Mantcemtnt Atnt

Owner Advtnwi

Tnntfer from Rertricted Cash Resm-w

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Tfintfew to Reitrieted Cash Rcim-ee

and Etciowi

Purchaaeofracd Anen

RcPtvmcrit ofOwner Adyancea

Other PiitnenhiB Eaocnset

Transfere to Tenint Security Deaotit Account

32.642

39.961

3t.65l

32.642

91.620

Net Increase otiDccrctsel In P/oJecl Account Cash

Pretttl Aeeocnl Cash Balinee n Brttnalnt of Year

Preieq Acemwi Cath Bat«f>ee ai End of Year'

CotTOMHionafPioietl Account Cash

111

PenrCKh

Unteetrietcd Rcterve fif andtcaMe)

Decoratini Reserve'
Operating Reserve
Otha Reserve

Total Petty Cash and UnrtBrkted Reicrvci

Total Proieci Accourn Cart

it End of Year

(19.194)

100.110.

I0.9i6

10.916

10,9)6
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNKS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 90l<02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS ANO OlSOURSEMENTS

PROJECTOPE^TING ACCOUNT

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JULY) 1.20J0

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rmil Qpcntkmt

Ificemt

Ttfttpi Pittf Reel
HAP Rent SubsMy

IfiUlMttUosflms
ScnrIce income,

intcrot Income

CommcfcU) Income

Ceto Income

Tou\ Rwrtil QpwiHom Recrtm

Exncft»i

Admtntstmive

Ulililki

Meislcnaacc .

Intcreei • HHHFA Mo<t|a|c Note
Iaureel • Other Notci

General

dihct

Toul RcfltHOpefnieni DtdMnctnentr

Cerh ProvkM by Renal OncfMroM

Amonhatlnn pfMoftntc

Ctrh Pravidetl RcnUl Qpcrailoni

After Dfbt Suvke

OTHER RECEIPTS

Ppcta Mifttterncm Aterti

(^staidxEom
Trawfer from Reitflcled Ctih Rertf%-et

end Eicrewi

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Trantfcra in Restricted Ceih Rwervcr

tnA EtCfOOT

PprrhtaenfFteee Ariett

RemtrmemafOwnerAiHrinctt

Other PiftnershinExcenitt

TriMfm 10 Teniftt Sectiritv Dcnolit Acetmni

S  ID.MI

1)6.616

i.ui

61

1.0t4

46.)9)

72.111

24.SS2

14.003

I3.))7

)7.)40

31.134

(2.011)

ill

S . 230.5)7.

254.2)4

(210,913)

43.249

27.912

t'.

)

37.140

36.072

Nei inetwre or (Deerearel in Pralect Ateewm CmK

Preitel Accoent C:eih Biitnce it Betinnlni of Ywr

Pwleci AecoiwH Cirh B»lincc n En6 nf Yrtf

9.110

91.6)0

100,110

Comwiiion gf Prg|«i Cii><i
.  Bilrnec at EntlofYftf

CQ&L^

UnfeitTietwlRftffverif>ni^ig>ht>t

Dccoraiifli Reserve
Openiini Reserve
Otha Reserve

Toal Pern Cish swd Unrettrrctcd Reserves

lOO.tiO

Tfltil Protect AeeoOTrlCerh

It End ofYetr
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901.02.05) ■ ■

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021 ^

DescriolionofFand

Balance

Dgposiis

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations
Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restrirted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

3,460 S 5.219 $ 7  S 5,660 S  3,046

5,927 ■ 27,749 13 26,982 6i?07

53,325 27,000 247 •.u' 180,572

67,842 . 103 .. 67,945

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves sod Escrows S 230,574 1 59,968 S 370 S 32,642 S 258,270

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31.2021 i

NETFNCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES . ,

ADD/D£DUCTNHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

S  37;352

23,580

'  16,445

27,000

S  17,487

48



SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
'  (PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

.YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31 ,-2021

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRJBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 S 113,850 S .  113,850

12/31/2004 s 113,850 s s 227,700

m 1/2005 s 113,850 s s 341,550

12/31/2006 s 113,850 s $ 455.400

12/31/2007 s 113,850 s s 569,250

12/31/2008 s 113,850 s s 683.100

■  12/31/2009 s 113,850 s s 796.950

12/31/2010 s 113,850 s s 910,800

12/31/2011 s i 13,850 s s 1,024,650

12/31/2012 s -  113.850 s s 1,138,500

12/31/2013 s 113V850 s s 1.252,350

12/31/2014 % 113,850 s s 1,366,200

12/31/2015 s 113,850 s s 1,480,050

12/30/2016 s 113,850 s s i;593,900

12/30/2017 s 113,850 $ s 1.707,750

'7/31/2018 s 66,413 s s 1,774,163

7/31/2019 s ,  113,850 s- s 1,888,013

7/30/2020 - s 113,850 s s 2,001,863

7/30/2021 s 113,850 $ s 2,115,713
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Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

August 2022

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orvllle Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard
Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown .

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Renault

Wanda Kermerson

German Ortiz

Peter Ramsey



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

Thie Community Action Partnership serving Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties
Mailing Address: PO 8oxS040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone; (603) 668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel for BWP23
Tlovember 2022

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage . Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnalee Lozeau $201,874 0.00% 0

Chief Operation Officer Ryan Clouthier $129,511 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer > iamesChalsson $145,200 0.00% 0

.
'• •

.  t

■■



DONNALEELOZEAU
Community and
Civic Invotvement-

Currant.
•  NH Community Actbn

Pertnerchlp.
«  HB4 Cnff Effecl WcuVlnp G ro'up.

Co-ctuir

•  Governor's Office for
Em'sfQoh^ ReOef end
Reoove^'SlaKehol|ders
Advteory Board. Chair

• Whole FsmBy Approach to Jobs
NH Copter. Coohdr

•  St Jose^ Hospitsi Board of
Directors

•  St. Msrya Benk Supervisory
Commldee. Chair

•  NH Kealihy Famines Board of
Directors •

«  Mary's House Advisory Boerd
-» The Plua Company

:i\ • NH Tomor'rowr leadership
Cound)

•  Eagle Scout Board of Revlmv
'  • Amertcen Counefl of Voung

-Pplltica! Leedera. Alumni
Member "•

Community and
Civic Involvement-

Past
•' .Rcechlnfl Higher NH
«  NH Center for PuUc Policies

Studios

•  GcNemor'a Judidol Setoction
Conimis^ .

•  Big Brolhera Big Sisters Boerd of
Directors. Pest President'

•  Statewide Workforoe trvtovotion
Board ■ •

Grooier Nashua Dental
■Connect BOD, Fourvfnig
Member

•  Great American Downtown.
Founding Member

•  Domestic Violence Coordinating
CouncO Nashua

•  US Conference of Mayers
•  No Lebeta
•  Rx the Debt

Experience

SoutheVn New Hampshira Servlcea. Inc.
Martchaator, NH
(January ZOIS'Presant)

Executlva Olrector/CEO
■  Devalopment and oversight of Commurdiy Action PertnersNp

aerving NH'a tva largest counties. HIQstmrough end
Rockingham.

•  Cooperation end engagement with local, etsta end federaf
agencies oxuj orgonizations on issues erto progrema tj^t
intersect with the Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamehtsiiy enner>ce (he deDvery of serviM to
targeted community to wrap sar>^s arourvd cQenls and
streamline-iha appUcallon process by Impiernenting the Whole
FamDy Approach

cny of Nashua. Now Hampahfro
(2008-2016)-Elected
Mayor

.« f dl time overall day to day menagement oidoperaflons of 2^
largest dty Oie state of with devolopment end
Imptementatlon of $245 million dollar (2016) annual budget

« Worked Mth elected boards iTKfudlng Board of Aldermen;
Pubflc Woika: Board of Education end others to priortUze and
belarioe budgel reguiraments end the needs of the community

t  Chaired Boerd of F^biic W^a erto the Finance Commlltee
•  SuccassMly negotiated the Crt/a purchase of the publicly '

traded water company (Pa'nnlchucK) after a prolonged case
before the NHPUC end the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Sorvlcos. Ir\c.
(1063 - 2008) Manchester. NH
Director of Program and Community Davelopmont

» Assessed the need for services throughout Hatsborough
County through community outreach by devetoping
partnerships. coQaboratlons orwj new inttiettves wl.lh aer>4ce .
providers end buslrteasas

•  Negotiated purchases ond contrects end pretented pro(ect8
before local boards, commissions and departmenb retstive to
housing, support services ond economic devetopmarrt

•  Desigrtodarxtimplemenled strategies for de^mioping
'working relationships with town and dty officials, local
saMca providers and oppropitaie private sector officials tn
order to pr^ct a positive image of Southern New
HampsNra Services, lr>c.

•  Founded Mar/s House 40 un'lla of housing for homaleas
women and devetopad 219 units of Elderly Houalng-

•  Pioneered Inlttatlves for the Commuraiy Corrections ond
Academy Progrema

•  Expanded Head Start Services and develop the program
and secured the site fdr Economic Opportunity Center



DONNAIEE LOZEAU

CbNTINyCO

Community and
Civic Involvement-

Past

•  NH Center for Public Policy
Studlee

•  Greeter Nashua Chamber of

•  Corruheico. Director
•  Greater Nashua Workforce

' Housing CoaClion,
Founding Member

•  Grestar Nashua Asset
Bufldtng Coalition,
Founding Member

•  New Hampshire
• Charttcfble Foundation

isiate Board, Member

Education and

Training
•  CCAP. Certified Community

Action Professional

•  CCAP Proctor

«  Rivier Conege.- Nashua-
UrKtergruduataworkln
PoUlical Sdence

•  Restaurant Management
Institute '

•  Mediation ertd Alternative
Dispute Resolution Training

•  LeadersNpinsVtute. Aspen
•  Justice df the Peace

« •-

NH Steto Representative. HUlsborough County, District 30
(1984-2000)

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Repreeontetlvee
(1996 - 2000)

•  Addressed consUhreni concerns

•  Assisted Non-Profll orgahtzstions end locel businesses
' wnhgovemmentalcor>cem8Bndste6r1r>gleglsJallor>

through .the political process by wortUrtg wlih members
end ieedership In the NH House of Represer^tatNes and
the NH Sertele end representatives of the Executive
end Judicial branches

•  Meneged floor debates end lupervbedHOuseCa/aridar
content

•  Rosponsble for functions of the House on behalf of or In (he
absence of the Speaker .

Committee Asslgnmente:
•  House Rules CommUtoe, Vice Chairman

•  House Legislative Administration Committee
•  Joint FociliUes Committee •

•  New Member Onentation, Chsir
-  House Corrections and CrfmlnsI Justice Committee.

Vice Chairman

•  House JudidBry Committee
"  Criminal Justice Sub-Committee. Chairman
.• State and Federal RetaOonsCcmmlttee '

Appolntmorrts;
•  Joint Legislative Performence Audit end Overs^

Committee

•  Juvenile Justice.Commission. Chairm en
•  Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee
•  Si4>eriorCourt Alternative Dispute Resolution

Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council
■  Interbrsnch.Crtmlnal and Juvenila Justice Council

o Subcommittee on'Offenders. Ct\Blrm8n
0  Space and Prison Progremmlr^
o  Juveniles Subcommittee. Co-ChaIr

•  National Conference of Stale Legislatures Law and
Juslica. Vice Chair.

•  Council of State Governments lntef90verrtmeAla]-
Affairs. Corrections and Public Safety

Cfty Streets Restaurant. (1988*1991
■  CHy Street* Diner. (2000 - 2003) Neehua. NH

t

Co-Owner/Operator

•  Operated 4S0 seat restaurant end banquet facility end
effectively managed financial accounts, staff and
licensing requbaments-



RYAN

CLOUTHIER
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OBJEaiVB

Setking t letderihip roie which wfll tilow mc ihe oppominity (o utilixe and build upnn my iuiowlcdce and
ptnlon 'rorihe work performed by Commvniiy Action Agencies In'ihe lUlc of New Himpihire, wbilo lltbe
tame itme bdnj the lupport.and ttiength for the Commufliiia we icrvc.

EXPERIENCE

D»put>' Director I Southern New Hampshire Services Iitc.
FEB.MIS-PRESEffT

Serving as pan of the Execeiiva Matufetncrii Team and h responsible for providing inspiring ieodmhip to the
Southern New Hanrpshlrc Sarvices (SNHS) senior mtfli|emc&i team and developing a paformance cultu.it to
cmtnt the effective rntfligemcm of a compreheostve amy of over liiiy pfogrtma. The Deputy Director will tie
the various eomponeni propims including: nutrition; heuslng; eoergy*. workforce developrnerti; Hicorae
cnhancesnoi; education; and elderly services to the cgcncy. to other, and to the ̂cra'l communlcy, by
prbmoting and ceihmunicaling the mlisian of Community Aciior). in coojunoion wiih the Eaccutiw Director
and Fi^ OfTker (he Deputy Director provides the ttr.^ship of SNHS by being actively Invohkd with the
agciKy's high-perfonnance senior leadmhip team in the devdopfficrtt, intplanenutiDn, and maiugcmetu of (ha .
program content as well u ftonuil budgets. Responsible for omiring that services and proems pfOvfded.Aiirill
the igeney'a mission, ertd art in compliance with all federal, ataie, fundtng. and city regvlatiooa, certiCtcatiofts.
and licensing rcqvifeiT^ts.

Energy and Housing Operations Direcior | Souiherri New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018
Roporisible for providing the vtrious.SNHS Encffy and Criits proprems, InformaiiOA Technology. Housing and
MaJmctunce ptogrimi wiih mission, vision and leadethlp. Rc^onskle for the planning, impUoicntatioo. and
evaluation of all facets of Otcal and pipgram management, cffeciivcnen while providing general ovcTti|hl for all
of Ihc program'a admlnLstrailon and day-to-day managcmeAi, Including budgei manageittcrti, grant writing and
purchasing. Abo rtsportrible for maintaining a working relaiioftship with govornneruil ofTtdals, local boards
■arsd agencies in developing and roanagirtg (he programa In cot\juncllon with the Executive Director and Tiseal
OfTtcer ihii positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with (he agency's high-
performaacc leni'or leadership team in the de^opment. ireplcmcntarion, and menigcmerti of program conteru as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fblAII (he agency's
mission and are in compiianee with all federal, (Uie. funding, city, certirications. and licettsing requlreroenU.
Energy Director | Southero New Hampshire Services Inc.
2013-2016
Rtfponsible for coordinsiion, implemcsiation, budgcilni, overall supervision and manigOTOt of (he Fuel and

' Electric Astisiawe Fiognms. Crisb Progrants. Weatherintion Pro-am, Lead Haard Control tagiM. and
YoulhBuild Pro^em for HUhbonagh and Rockinghira Counties. Develop and Mainuin raUtionshipt with,
federal, staia and local grantor*. Intervene on behalf of (he Community Action peruining to the Core tAHity
Wutbcrization Energy Effreiency Programs. Maintains i strong working relaiionihips whh OCA, NH Legal
Aasistincc, Office of Stntegie Injilatlve, DOE, Liberty UiHiiia, Eversource, HHEC, Urriiil, NHHFA, NR£l„
Apprise and other local nort-profti and private companiei in the industry. Panicipata In multiple Healthy Home
srrategic pftnnlng cqmrniltecs.
WaathfrUatlon Diraetor | Soutbtrrt New Hampshire Sendees loc
2006-20.13
Responsible for coQ>rdlnalion. implementation, budgcthtg. overall supervision trnj managcnicni of the
Weaiheriation. Lead Abatement, and YouthBuiM Pr^rams for Hlllsboroo|h and Rdckingham Countiea.
Developed attd Maintain relationships with fcdenl, itsie and local grintori. Interverted on bchi\f of the
Commnnliy Action Assoclirioo during Ihe merge of Liberty Eneigy and Nttiorul CrW Gas along wiOi filings
poliining to the Core £na0 EfTtcieney Pmgrims. Developed strong working Ttlationshlps with OCA, NH



Le|il AoUunec Office of EiMTfyind PUnning, DOE. Liberty EftO0, Everwwte, NHEC, UflUH. NHHPA,
NREL, Apprise tnd oiha tedil ooo-^fii md private compania In <he Industry. Served on the Dqwimcnt of
Crtergy fpnlal task force designed lo implement t National Bc^i.Praaices Manual for. JTA/KSA for
Wetthcritatioo Energy Auditor Certifiaiiofl. Participated in a "'bfte Touch" pilot effort whkh beceme a
statewide practice and has received naiiooal itcogniiion

Crtcrgv Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004 - 2006 V
ResporuWc for perfomtini field crterjy ludiiiof low income rtsldcoiiil properties; record the data In wriiien
artd compoicrited formats to determioe oost cfftctlvwest of conservation measures needed; genmie work o?der
specs Tor the contrietora. Conduct proper.foUow through artd ftcld inspections to assure ̂ lity imulUtiens and
ciieol salisfactioa

Nerwork Analyst t Genuity
2004 - 2006

ReipOMlbli for mottitoring the Cemiity Dial up networtt supporting AOL Domeitic and IrWOTidonal tubseriberi
loctudiflg lapan, USA and Canada. Rti^oruibllliles Include Isolating and iroubleahooUrjg pfohla^owages and
eonfigurtlloo iaswes. un ditfcreru types of Cisto routcri. LueenfAPX's. MAX'a. and Nortel CVX'a.
T'rogbleibootio|conalstiof Uotatlngproblemi through head to head testing with difreftniTcUo'i. Aho
respoiiiibic for ercating IrouWcshooung and elciing tictcti in a group ticketing queue. Demohstrattd iireagths
In the am o.f interpersonal skills and riegoilttlon.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical CoUegc
t994-/M: Dover High School
Other: WeatheriiAlion written and fteW certification. Deptrtmott of ̂ergy QwlUy Control Inspector
Certiricatlon, multiple national arid regibTtal weaiheriaation best practices ntlnings. Intro to Cism routers. T1 and
H.destgn and troubleshooting trainmi, ATM and Frame Relay network daign training LAN and WAN
training OCi". 0C4J, and 00192 design and nrouhkshooting training BPl Energy Analyst. Lead contriclor
ibatemtau Cenificaiim. RRP certification. OSHA JO hour worker ufety. DOE Lead Safe Wcaiheiittiion
calificatien.

SKILLS

Problem solving

New 8usine» Development

Social Media

Public Speaking .. ■

Dau Analysis/Analytical thinking
Stritcgk Planning
Opaations Managcntail
Contract Negotlaiions

Team tod Relationship buildiitg
Plawting and forecasting

Budget and rinancial mantgemou
Leadership

Community Asscomenl

Computer skills specific to job iachide.
TREAT. NEAT, OTTER. FAP/EAP
Microsoft 365, PowerPoiftL Ottllook.
Word, Excel. Web, EmpowOR and CSST
and many othcn that can be bqteTimal.

AaiVmES/ACCOMPLlSHMENTS

•  Numerous press articlca rtlaled to Wcatheriution including rijiti from the Airisunt Secnrtanr of Energy
EfTiciency from ihe Department of Energy and Vke President loe Biden.

•  Membffofthe.CityofHishutHeillhyHomcsSiiaicgiePUnnmgCOfnmlitee.
. ■ Member ofthe City of Mat>chc5ter IHcilihy Homes Stratcgie Plannlni Committee.
•  UnionLesderdOonderdOCIauoriOIJ.
•  VicePre»idoh}oflh'eHeighborheip<ngNc»^bwBoafd. ■
•  Member of tJia Energy EfTickncy and Suitilnable Energy Board.
•  Monber ofthe ResidcAtlal Ratc^ycn Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience in manufacturing^ distribution, reorganizatloru/mergers and acquisitions, sales/operailons
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring performance metrics (n a manufacturing environment.
Experienced In private and public corporations, Including 8 years In a private equity environment,with a strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&l, balance
sheet, cash Oow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, tralriing and development In a team
environment. Professional Experience:

• ' Fiscal Officer in nonprofit organization

•  Controller in MFC & Distribution

•  TreasuryandCashFlowManagement

'  9 Financial & Capital Bi^getlrtg, Reporting & Control
•  Cost Accounting Manager

■  • General Accounting Manager

»  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EKPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH s/1009-Preient
Southefn;Ncw Harripshlre Services (SNHS) 1$ a rton-profit entity dedicated to helping people help themselves.
SN HS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and Intake sights
located throughout Rocklngham and Hlllsborough counties.. The agency also oversees 29 housing fadlltles
with appfoxtmatety 1000 tenants.-^ SNHS receives and administers $36 million In program funds annually with
over 450 ehi'ployees.

CMp! fiscal omar , ' l/IOH to Prtwnl
•  Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential.buslness

risks

« Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities
■  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors meetings presenting the organizatlbn's financial results
«  Develop and maintain banking relationships
t Manage the Annual Audit process

^tnioT Accountant 5/2(W-l/2017

Assisted Fiscal Director In oversee.Ing all Rscal and financial activities Including compliance with federal, state,
and.fundlng'source requirements as well as accordance with CAAP
•  Developed and Implemented Indirect cost calculation and Interfaced with General Ledger
• ■ Monitored and prepared monthly budget v$ actual reporting; rcccmrnended adjusiments and forecast

spending

•  Created speclallied. reports for the Individual grant's reporting requirements
•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared Items to Individual grants and programs
•  Prepared monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



iamts.H Chaluon

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. BIddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
W5), (s a highly let^r'aged business owned by Roark Capital a private equity fund, headquartered Ir^ Atlanta,
GA. WSI is a $70 million manufacturer of roof and floor.trusses, wall panels and a distributor of engineered

wood products. The compan/s products are sold Into the residential and light commercial construction
markets

Controller ■ M06-4/2009

Managed all aspects of accounting and reporting Iri a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution location that Included 2 locations In Maine and 1 in Massachusetts.
•  Calculated and assisted In the management of the company's covenants

• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process from the seller (Harbour Group) and
buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers arsd .Implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cyde from IB
to 5 days'

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on ftnandal results and measurement

• Oversow the payroll function of 1604-employees

Accounting ̂ dntiaer 2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accour^tlng processes. Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 tocatloru In Maine and 1 In
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocpfs of the company used by both equlty.sponsors

•  Educated, motivated end developed a staff of 3 to suaeed in their rolls of financial responsibility
•  identlflM and Implemented processes and procedures for alt intercompany sales, transfers,

consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the payroll process that Induded transferring to an external supplier (AOP), which reduced
cost by 40%

•  Conducted physical Inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAYSPRAGUE,Sanford,ME ' 1978-2001
Vish^ Sprague Is a division of Vlshay Intertechnology Inc (NVSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum
capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and 1,400 employees. Vr

Plant Coit Accounting Manager

DMtlon Geftgfo/Acceu/if/nq Monaaer

Division Operation Accountant

DMston fixed Asset j^ccountant
Mostef Engineering Technician

Lead Production Technlclon

1997-2001

199S-1997

1989-1995

1987-1989

1984 1987

1978-1984

EOUCATiON

NASSON COLLEGER, Sprlngvale, ME

B.S. In Business Administration


